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Strategic Report of the Corporation
OBIJECTIVES AND STRATEGY

The Corporation members present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor’s
report for the year ended 31 July 2021,

Legal status

Salford City College was formed on 2 Jlanuary 2009 from the three existing colleges in Salford. On 1 January 2009
Pendleton College acquired the assets and liabilities of Eccles College and Salford College. This was achieved by
the dissolution of the corporations of Eccles College and Salford College and a transfer of their employees, assets
and liabilities into Pendleton College under section 27 of the Further and Higher Education Act 1992,

The Corporation was established under the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 for the purpose of conducting
Pendleton College but it changed its name to Salford City College on 2 January 2009, The College is an exempt
charity for the purposes of Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011.

Mission, Vision, Strategy and Objectives

The Corporation reviewed the College’s mission and in July 2017 adopted a new vision, aims and 5 year strategic
plan:

Our Vision
To be a beocon of educational excellence transforming the lives of the individuals and communities we serve.

Our Aims

We aim to:

s Deliver outstanding quality in terms of teaching and learning and the student experience,

*  Provide outstanding levels of student care with an emphasis on educating the whole person, employability
skills and paositive progression outcomes.

«  Cregte o college community with core values at its heart.

o  Nurture our staff ond students so that we have high levels of morale, together with creativity, innovation
and excellence.

e Put high standards at the heart of all that we do. In our pursuit of excellence, we recognise that individually
and collectively we can always improve.

To support the achievement of our aims we will:

o Seek to prosper as an independent organisation working in partnership with others to contribute to local,
regional and national priorities.

*  aintain a comprehensive offer for all abilities and ages, valuing all our students equally and promaoting
equality and diversity.

o [nvest in and modernise our compuses.

e Maintain finoncial stability through effective cost control and growth in 16-18 students, Higher Education,
Apprenticeships, odult and full cost recavery provisian,

*  Strive to become sector-leading in all our activities with appropriote benchmarking against ‘Best in Class’
organisations, Sixth Form Colleges and General Further Education Colleges.

QOur Values

o |We respect the rights of individuals.

o We promote ethical and professional behaviour.

o  We value all our staff and students equally.

e |We promote equality, diversity and inclusion.

= We operate first and foremost as a centre of excellence in education.

s We prigritise the needs of our primary stakeholders! our students and the communities we serve,



Our Strategic Plan
Three key strategic objectives:

Quality
To become a Grade 1 (Outstanding) college with:

s Grade 3 (Excellent) Alps or equivalent on all courses
s Al areas of the College exceeding national achievement rates by a minimum of 5% by
September 2021

Growth
» By September 2021 to further increase the number of 16-18 students enrolling at the College
together with expansion of Higher Educaotion, apprentices, adult and full cost recovery
provision

Efficiency
s By September 2021 to be classified by the ESFA as having ‘Good’ financial performance with
sound finances leading to organisational stability.

Our Financial objectives

The key ongoing financial objectives are:
* Generation of a surplus excluding pension adjustment (2020-21: £1 672k surplus).
e Achievement of a ‘Good’ financial health rating from the Education Skills Funding Agency (2020-21:
‘Dutstanding’).
s Achievement of an adjusted current ratio of 1.1 (2020-21: 2.01).
e  Maintenance of cash days of 50 (2020-21: 98).

Covid-19 impact

As with the whole of the sector, the College has had a challenging year in relation to the impact from the Covid-
19 pandemic, most notably from the requirement to alternate between remote, blended and on site education
delivery and home working to meet government guidelines, as well as the financial impact of the crisis, However,
the guality, growth and efficiency objectives have been met, and the College has achieved a strong financial
position and cash balance in excess of its plan. The College has subseguently reviewed its mission and adopted
a new 2 year post-pandemic strategy for 2021 to 2023, from August 2021.

Resources
Salford City College has a wide range of resources that it can deploy in pursuit of its strategic priorities.

The College employed an average of 691 people (533 when expressed as full time equivalents), of whom 358
were teaching staff (312 when expressed as full time equivalents).

The College enrolled approximately 9,494 students. The College's student population includes 4,718 16 to 18
year old students, 1,404 apprentices, 302 higher education students, and 2,902 adult learners. There were no
international students.

The College has £180k of net assets (2019-20: £887k of net liabilities), including a £26,181k pension liability
(2019-20: £25,576k), and total debt of £6,212k (2019-20: £6,526k), £434k of which is deemed to be due within
one year (2019-20: £6,526k due to the timing of loan refinancing arrangements and the resultant classification
as short term debt ). The College's cash balance at 31% July 2021 was £9,065k (2019-20: £4,167k).

Tangible resources include the main college sites at Dronfield Road, Lissadel Street and Merchant’'s Quay in
Salford, FutureSkills at MediaCity, Chatsworth Road in Eccles and Walkden Road in Worsley. In addition to these
main sites, the needs of learners are met in a number of community based venues across the City of Salford.

Maintaining brands is essential for the College’s success at attracting students and developing external
relationships. Trading as SCC Group, the College markets its provision under the banners of five colleges and two
brands. The five colleges are Eccles Sixth Form College, Pendleton Sixth Form College, City Skills, Worsley College,
and Future Skills at MediaCityUK, whilst the two brands are University Centre at Salford City College and
Apprenticeships at Salford City College.



Resources (continued)

The College has an outstanding reputation locally and nationally. In the last Ofsted inspection in December 2019,
the outcome remained a grade 2 meaning the College continues to be a Good provider.

The College is registered with the Office of Students, to deliver its higher education provision.

Stakeholders

The College has many stakeholders including:

e jts current, future and past students;

« jts staff and their trade unions. The senior leadership team are named on page 1. The trade unions of
which Salford City College staff are members are UNISON, NASUWT, National Education Union, and
University and College Union;

s the employers it works with;

s the professional organisation for each of the sectors in which it operates;

s jts partner schools and universities;

s the wider college community;

e Salford City Council, Greater Manchester Combined Authority and Chambers of Commerce.

The College recognises the importance of these relationships and engages in regular communication with its
stakeholders. The College has representatives on a number of key groups and leads in many of these areas.

Public Benefit

Salford City College is an exempt charity under the Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011 and is regulated by the
Secretary of State for Education. The members of the Corporation, who are trustees of the charity, are disclosed
on page 1. In setting and reviewing the College's strategic objectives, the Corporation has had due regard for
the Charity Commission’s guidance on public benefit and particularly upon its supplementary guidance on the
advancement of education.

In delivering its mission, the College provides identifiable public benefits through the advancement of education
to 9,494 students, including 131 students with high needs. The College provides courses without charge to
young people, to those who are unemployed and adults taking English and maths courses. The College adjusts
its courses to meet the needs of local employers and provides training to 1404 apprentices. The College is
committed to providing information, advice and guidance to the students it enrols and to finding suitable courses
for as many students as possible regardless of their educational background.

DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMANCE
Financial Results

The College focuses on monitoring performance based on its operating position, which is the surplus or deficit
excluding pension adjustment. The College generated a surplus excluding pension adjustment of £1,672k (2019-
20: £563k deficit).

The College received 89% of its total income from funding bodies, most notably from the Education and Skills
Funding Agency (ESFA) for 16-18 provision. The increase in funding body grant income from the prior year was
largely due to 16-18 funding from the ESFA, following significantly increased student numbers above target. The
College also received additional one-off funding in refation to Covid-19 in 2020-21 from the ESFA 16-19 Tuition
Fund, to support small group tuition to facilitate catch-up and focussed learning. As a result of these additional
income streams, there has been an increase in staff and other operating costs from the prior year, although these
have been offset by reduced expenditure in some areas as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic and therefore the
change in expenditure does not completely correspond with the increase in income. In addition, the College
received one-off Covid-19 funding from the Coronavirus lob Retention Scheme, following the temporary closure
of commercial operations. This has all contributed to an improvement in financial performance in year compared
to the financial plan.

The College generated a deficit before other gains and losses in the year of £656k (2019-20: deficit of £2,168k).
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Financial Results {continued)

The actuarial gain on the pension schemes has resulted in a total comprehensive gain for the year of £1,067k
(2019-20: £10,019k loss).

During the year, the College incurred restructuring costs of £90k (2019-20 £169k).

At the balance sheet date, the College held net current assets of £4,267k (2019-20: current liabilities £5,192k).
The movement in year reflects the updated classification of the College’s loans as long-term debit following
refinancing arrangements being concluded in year. The College held total net assets of £180k {2019-20: £887k
of net liabilities), which includes a defined benefit pension liability of £26,181k {2019-20: £25,576k).

Covid-19 impact

Following the pandemic’s profound impact on the College’s finances in the prior year, and despite the ongoing
challenges faced in year, the College has met its aim to recover its financial position and return its focus to
building strong financial foundations.

Whilst core funding was assured from the ESFA for 16-18 delivery, and indeed over-achieved through in-year
growth monies due to significantly increased student numbers above target, the majority of other income
streams were not. Delivery against the ESFA and Greater Manchester Combined Authority adult education
budget allocations were below plan. Tuition fees across all provision were affected. Higher Education income
was adversely impacted with the removal of the student cap as a result of the pandermic. As a result of periods
of national lockdown, catering and other commercial income has been significantly reduced in year.

Conversely, the College was able to support learners catch up with core education through receipt of a 16-19
Tuition Fund allocation for small group tuition, Apprenticeship income recovered strongly in year, with significant
levels of recruitment despite the volatility of the employment market.

Expenditure was restricted where possible and appropriate. For some services, the College was able to negotiate
a reduction in costs where the provision of service was temporarily not required, whilst exam fees were reduced
due to the move to teacher assessed grades Following the temporary closure of commercial operations, the
Corporation furloughed catering staff and other staff supporting commercial activities under the Government's
Coranavirus Job Retention Scheme, obtaining £80k income to support salaries.

Cash flows and liquidity

The College’s net cash flow from operating activities was £7,241k (2019-20: £1,572k), which was a significant
improvement on the prior year. The College’s overall net cash inflow is £4,898k (2019-20: cash outflow £681k),
after financing £1,744k of tangible fixed asset purchases and total debt servicing costs of £600k.

During the year the College refinanced a £2.5m secured loan at a variable interest rate of Base Rate plus 1.9%.
The loan is for 5 years from March 2021, with a 10-year payment profile. This loan was refinanced during
2020-21, thus moving the liability from short term to long term in year. The College also renegotiated its £5.375m
loan to include security for the lender.

The size of the College’s total borrowing and its approach to interest rates has been calculated to ensure a
reasonable cushion between the total cost of servicing debt and operating cashflow. During the year this margin
was easily exceeded and the loan covenants were complied with.

Covid-19 impact

Following the deterioration in the College’s finances during the prior financial year due to the pandemic, cash
was protected wherever possible in 2020-21. Most notably, capital expenditure funded by cash reserves was
significantly reduced in line with the cash balances needing to recover. The strength of the College’s financial
position has also impacted favourably on the cash position, caused in part by reduced costs linked to the
pandemic.

With the exception of the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme, no financial support was applied for by the College,
and therefore it was not in receipt of any funds from the ESFA's provider relief scheme, Government's
Coronavirus business interruption loan scheme, nor the national free meals voucher scheme.



Developments

The College’s ongoing investment in its estate continued, with tangible fixed asset additions during the year
amounting to £2,015k. This was split between property improvements of £1,468k, fixtures and fittings of £70k,
and equipment purchases of £560k, which was offset by £84k of assets held in the course of construction at the
end of the prior year moving into these categories during 2020-21.

As part of this investment, the College received £1,524k of capital funding from the Department for Education’s
Further Education Capital Allocation (FECA) in September 2020 to undertake remedial work to upgrade the
condition of the estate, most of which was spent in-year.

Reserves

The College has accumulated reserves of £{363)k and cash balances of £9,065k. Excluding defined pensions
obligations in relation to the LGPS pension scheme, the accumulated reserves stand at £25,818k. The College
wishes to continue to accumulate reserves and cash balances to create a contingency fund and to fund the further
development of the College estate.

Sources of Income

The College continues to have significant reliance on the education sector funding bodies as its principal funding
source, largely from recurrent grants. In 2019-20, the Further Education funding bodies provided 89% of the
College's total income (2019-20: 87%).

Covid-19 impact

The pandemic has reinforced the importance of diverse income streams to support the College’s financial
position. The College’s reliance on funding body income increased in year, linked to significant over-recruitment
of 16-19 students resulting in receipt of in-year growth funds from the ESFA, and receipt of the ESFA's 16-19
Tuition Fund. With the temporary cessation of commercial activities, non-funded income levels fell, but these
are anticipated to return to pre-pandemic levels as a minimum now that Covid-19 measures are no longer in
place which limit activity.

Group Companies

The College had one subsidiary company, Edlobs Limited, which has not traded for some years. Following an
application to Companies House, it was dissolved on 17 November 2020,

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

The College is committed to reducing its carbon emissions and has taken the following measures in the year to
improve energy efficiency:
« Taken advantage of Covid 19 to strengthen mobility with digital solutions.
* ‘Where possible and appropriate, staff have been encouraged to hold more virtual meetings, rather than
commuting and undertaking business travel. As a result, business travel has reduced significantly in
2020-21.

The College’s greenhouse gas emissions and energy use for the period are set out below

UK Greenhouse gas emissions and energy use data for the period 1 August 2020to| 1 August 2019 to
_ 31 July 2021 31 July 2020

Energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kWh) 6,147,027 £,109,904

Scope 1 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e

Gas consumption 516 520

Owned transport 5 7

Total 521 527

Scope 2 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e

Purchased electricity 692 652

Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e

Business travel in employee owned vehicles 8 46

Total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e 1,221 1,225

Intensity ratio: Metric tonnes per staff member 1.75 1.86




Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (continued)

Qualification and reporting methodology

The College has followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. In addition, the College
has also used the GHG Reporting Protocol — Corporate Standard, and the 2021 UK Government's Conversion
Factors for Company Reporting.

Intensity ratio
The College’s chosen intensity measurement ration is emissions in metric tonnes (CO2e) per staff member.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Future developments

The ambition of the College is to create a curriculum and supporting infrastructure which is distinctive and meets
the needs of individual learners. The College has two sixth form centres, together with a range of vocational
skills centres placed in areas of defined need, and will maintain its 5 college and 2 brand approach with
distinctive cultures serving the needs of specific cohorts of students across the City.

The College’s vision, aims and objectives establish a clear emphasis on quality, efficiency and growth. Following
an initial two year period of consolidation, and continuing progression in 2019-20, the financial year 2020-21 has
seen significant further developments in the College, and has laid the foundation to enable future significant
change to support the College's key aims, mamely to establish financial stability and invest in guality
improvement,

Linked to known demographic increases in school leavers in the local area over the next five years, the College is
well positioned to be the destination of choice, with ever increasing standards of educational delivery. Our
curriculum offering will continue to reflect current and future needs of our local community and the City's
economic development, and is responsive to national changes. It is well designed to support the development
of T Levels, and to accommeoedate a new era of student, where outcomes are not compromised post pandemic.

A new strategic plan for 2021 to 2023 has been developed, reflecting the progress made during the year, the
effects of the Covid-19 pandemic, and the Government's White Paper on Further Education: Skills for Jobs:
Lifelong Learning for Opportunity and Growth. The College is well placed to respond to further education reform,
and to support the development of skills to meet economic needs. At the heart of the future strategy remains
the same vision and core guiding principles, with a balance struck between growth and the need to maintain
guality and efficiency, and with an emphasis on educating the whole person, employability skills and positive
progression outcomes.

Covid-19 impact

Following the necessitated change to the curriculum delivery and business models at the start of the pandemic,
these continue to be available to the College, to be utilised as appropriate in the coming period should they be
required, with the College flexible in its approach to the situation as it unfolds. Detailed curriculum delivery plans
exist to support blended or remote study programmes and courses if required, and the workforce would be able
to continue to work flexibly to meet the needs of the College and its learners.

A greater focus on technology and more versatile curriculum delivery has arisen as a result of the pandemic, and
this will continue to be invested in moving forward to support the quality objective. Online and blended learning
models have the potential to further enhance standards and reach a greater number of students, thus also
supporting the growth objective, including the potential for more adult learners to take on studies. Mot all
learners will engage effectively with remote delivery learning models and this may impact on the gquality of the
provision and the learner experience,

With the move to remote working for periods of the pandemic, there is the potential for the College to continue
to grow without the need for additional estate to support the College’s professional functions, and further
support the efficiency objective.



Financial plan

The College Governors approved a financial plan in July 2021, which sets ohjectives for the period to luly 2022,
The College aims to maintain its financial health rating of ‘Outstanding’, and to achieve a surplus excluding
pension adjustment in the year to 31 July 2022,

Sound financial planning is even more critical for the College as it emerges from the Covid-19 pandemic. In
developing the financial plan for the 2021-22 financial year, a detailed review of the College's income streams
and cost base has been undertaken, to create a robust baseline budget, on which the decision-making process
for the College can be based. There is a clear understanding of the financial position across the Corporation and
senior leadership team, and a commitment to continuing to steer the College on a sound financial base and to
financial sustainability.

Whilst the College has increasing levels of 16-18 funding following recent growth in student numbers, mitigation
plans are being formulated to enable the College to be responsive to fluctuations in financial performance,
including any potential ongoing impact of the public health crisis ion the College’s income streams. The drive for
efficiency and value for money across the whole spectrum of the College's activities is of paramount importance
in order to further secure the College’s financial position and to ensure continued progress on the path towards
financial sustainability.

The College's College Financial Forecasting Return (CFFR) submitted to the ESFA in July 2021 outlined a financial
health grade of ‘Outstanding’, with continuing strong performance in both surplus and cash over the coming 2
years . Whilst impact of the Covid-19 pandemic will potentially continue to have an impact on the College’s
finances in 2021-22, the expectation based on September 2021 enrolment and planned growth over the medium
term is for the ambition to maintain an Outstanding financial health to be realised.

Treasury policies and objectives

Treasury management is the management of the College’s cash flows; its banking, money market and capital
market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum
performance consistent with those risks. The College has a treasury management policy in place to manage cash
flows and associated risks.

Short term borrowing for temporary revenue purposes is authorised by the College’s Accounting Officer.  All
other borrowing requires the authorisation of the Corporation, and compliance with the requirements of the
ESFA Funding Agreement.

The College has no plans to increase long term borrowing. The College has agreement in principle for an overdraft
facility with our primary bankers, should this be required for short term cash flow purposes, but this is not
expected to be required.

Reserves

The College has no formal Reserves Policy but recognises the importance of reserves in the financial stability of
an organisation, and ensures that there are adequate resources to support the College’s core activities. The
College currently holds no restricted reserves {2019-20: £nil). As at the balance sheet date, the Income and
Expenditure account reserve stands at £{363)k (2019-20: -£1,461k). This is predominantly due to the defined
benefit obligation of £26,181k {2019-20: £25,576k)in relation to the Local Government Pension Scheme. It is the
Corporation’s intention to increase reserves over the life of the Strategic Plan, by the generation of annual
operating surpluses,

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The College has well-developed strategies for managing risk and strives to embed risk management in all that it
does. Risk management processes are designed to protect its assets, reputation and financial stability, The
governing body has overall responsibility for risk management, and its approach to managing risks and internal
controls is explained in the Statement on Corporate Governance.



PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

A risk register is maintained at the College level which is reviewed monthly by the senior leadership team, and
at least annually by the Audit Committee and more frequently where necessary. The risk register identifies the
key risks, the likelihood of those risks occurring, their potential impact on the College and the actions being
taken to reduce and mitigate the risks. Risks are prioritised using a consistent scoring system.

The main risk factors which may affect the College are outlined below, along with the action being taken to
minimise them. Mot all factors are within the College's control. Other factors besides those listed below may
also adversely affect the College.

Government funding

The College has considerable reliance on continued government funding through the further education sector
funding bodies. In 2020-21 89% of the College’s revenue was ultimately public funded and this level of
requirement is expected to continue, There can be no assurance that government policy or practice will remain
the same or that public funding will continue at the same levels or on the same terms.

The College is aware of several issues which may impact on future funding, including the implementation of the
Government's White Paper on Further Education, further apprenticeship reforms, the removal of funding for the
majority of applied general gualifications such as BTECs, and the proposed reform of the adult skills funding
system in the context of the third year of devolution of the adult education budget. The College, in conjunction
with its key stakeholders, is developing a strategy for growth in response to the devolution agenda, and to these
reforms, elements of which are in readiness for their publication. It is recognised that any changes to funding
will impact on the College, but the extent and full implications will not be known until government policy has
developed.

This risk is mitigated in a number of ways:
e Funding is derived through a number of direct and indirect contractual arrangements.
= By ensuring the College is rigorous in delivering high quality education and training.

» Considerable focus and investment are placed on maintaining and managing key relationships with the
various funding bodies.

e Ensuring the College is focused on those priority sectors which will continue to benefit from public
funding.

=  Regular dialogue with the funding bodies.

= Exploring potential new income streams to underpin the College’s income levels,

Maintain adequate funding of pension liabilities

The financial statements report the share of the Local Government Pension Scheme deficit on the College's
balance sheet in line with the regquirements of FRS 102,

This risk is mitigated by an agreed deficit recovery plan with the Greater Manchester Pension Scheme.

Failure to maintain the financial viability of the College

The College's current financial health grade is classified as 'Outstanding’ as described above. Notwithstanding
that, the continuing challenge to the College's financial position remains the constraint on further education
funding arising from a sustained period of cuts in public sector spending and increasing costs, whilst maintaining
the student experience.

This risk is mitigated in a number of ways:

« By rigorous budget setting procedures and sensitivity analysis
+ Continuous in year budget monitoring and forecasting

#  Robust financial controls

=  Exploring ongoing procurement efficiencies

e Diversification of income streams



Covid-19 impact
Whilst many of the College’s risks and uncertainties have been sensitive to Covid-19 related matters during the
year, many are ongoing. Enduring key risks arising from the pandemic are:

« the ability to deliver study programmes and courses

e the ability to recruit and retain learners

¢ the ability to continue the development of partnerships and stakeholder relationships

e the potential for an unrecoverable of income

* the ongoing costs of elements of Covid-related measures

These risks are being maonitored closely and continue to be mitigated in a number of ways:

=  Creation of detailed curriculum delivery plans to support on site, blended or remote study programmes
and courses

e Regular engagement with learners to ensure progress and provide support
e Versatile marketing plans to deliver targets

¢ Close working with partners and key stakeholders to strengthen our provision offering and
communication

» Maintenance of a contingency budget to underpin the College’s financial position

»  Sensitivity analysis of income streams, with mitigation plans to address different scenarios including
cost reduction

¢ Continuousin year budget monitoring, with ongoing analysis of income levels against target

* Tight budgetary control to understand and address increased costs, including of Covid-related
measures

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The College is committed to observing the importance of sector measures and indicators, and uses the
Department for Education (DfE) performance tables and National Achievement Rate tables (NART) to benchmark.
However, due to the pandemic, the results for both 2019-20 and 2020-21 have not been officially reported for
any provider. The College is required to complete the annual College Financial Forecasting Return (CFFR) for the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA), in which the College is assessed by the ESFA as having ‘Outstanding’
financial health,

Student numbers
In 2020-21 the College delivered activity against its main funding body allocations as follows:

* 1618 funding allocation £23,156k, with 4,718 learners (2019-20: £20,659k with 4,211 learners)

s  ESFA Adult Skills Budget allocation, including community learning, of £11k (2019-20: £98k)

s GMCA Adult Skills Budget allocation, including community learning, of £5,961k (2019-20: £6,172k)
« 1618 Apprenticeship allocation and levy income of £2,782k (2019-20: £2,909k)

Value Added

Value added measures overall student performance, taking into account the number of subjects and the guality
of teaching and learning. The Quality Indicator (Ql) score and grade indicates the progress made across all
examination entries, containing every grade taken by each subject, and thus giving a clear view of overall
curriculum performance. The Ql compares the total actual points with the total expected points. Qutcomes are
graded from 1 to 9 to show performance against national benchmarks, where 1 is "best possible”, 2 is
“putstanding”, 3 is “excellent” and 4 is “very good”. A Grade 1 Alps indicates performance in the top 1% in the
country, as students perform better than 99% of other sixth form establishments when compared to students
with the same GCSE grades on entry.
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Value Added (continued)

At A level, the College has again achieved a value added score of 2 (2019-20: 2), maintaining its significant
progress since a score of 4 in 2018-19 and & in 2017-18 and 2016-17.

For Advanced Level Vocational, the College has again achieved a value added score of 2 (2019-20: 2), maintaining
its progress since a score of 2 in 2018-19, 3 in 2017-18 and a 5 in 2016-17.

Following the learning from the 2020 summer examinations, the Government and Ofgual agreed to award
Teacher Assessed Grades (TAG) for the 2021 examination series. The TAG is the teacher's professional
judgement of the most likely grade a student would have achieved if exams had gone ahead. The College's
teachers based this grade on a range of evidence including mock exams, coursework, homework assignments
and any other records of student performance over the course of study. Therefore, it was an accurate reflection
on performance.

Student achievements
Achievement rates at the College continue to be good, including apprenticeships.

The overall 16-18 achievement rate has remained at the high rate of 87% (2019-20: 87%), with a 19+
achievernent rate of 84% (2019-20: 85%). The overall apprenticeship success rate is 67.5% (2019-20: 65.4%).

Level 3 achievement rates were at 92.6% for 16-18 students (2019-20: 91.7%) and 85.6% for 19+ students (2019~
20: 89.4%).

Financial results

The College is subject to assessment on its financial performance against a series of key performance indicators

relevant to the Further Education sector, from both the ESFA as its main funding body , as well as against the FE
Commissioner benchmarks. These are set out in the table below.

Measure 2020-21 | 2019-20
Adjusted Current Ratio >1.4 2.01 0.51
Education-specific EBITDA as % of adjusted > 6% 11.38% 6.22%
income
Borrowing as a % of income < 35% 16.36% 18.91%
ESFA Financial Health Rating Good or Outstanding Outstanding Requires

Improvement
Adjusted operating surplus (as a % of income) = 1% 4.40% (1.63)%
Debt service cover ratio =2 12.07 2.64
Cash days in hand =25 98 47
Pay costs as a % of adjusted income <65% (General FE College) 63.61% 69.06%
<70% (Sixth Form Caollege)

Quality of Provision

The College was subjected to an Ofsted Short Inspection Visit in December 2019, the outcome was that the
College continues to be a Good provider (Grade 2).

The Inspectors made a judgement on a four-point scale:

1. Outstanding {Grade 1}

2. Good (Grade 2)

3. Requires Improvement (Grade 3)
4, Inadequate (Grade 4)
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Quality of Provision (continued)

The inspection was conducted under the new Education Inspection Framework and focused on Quality of
Education and Leadership & Management. All campuses and provision types were inspected: young people,
adults, apprenticeships and high needs learners. Outcomes from the report highlight how far the Caollege has
travelled and praised the way leaders strive to ensure every student gains the very best possible outcomes.

The Corporation were pleased with the outcome of the Inspection Visit and the College continues to monitor
progress against any recommendations made and ensure that high standards are maintained.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY
Equality

Salford City College is fully committed to ensuring and delivering equality of opportunity for all its students and
staff. The College is committed to ensuring the elimination of all forms of unfair and illegal discrimination, as
well as all forms of harassment and victimisation. We respect and value positively differences in race, gender,
sexual orientation, disability, religion or belief and age.

The College’s Single Equality Scheme is published on the College’s website. The College publishes an Annual
Equality Report and Equality Objectives to ensure compliance with all relevant equality legislation including the
Equality Act 2010. The College undertakes equality impact assessments on all new policies and procedures.
Equality impact assessments are also undertaken for existing policies and procedures on a prioritised basis.

The College's Single Equality Scheme is reviewed each year and monitored by managers and the Carporation.

The College has developed and implemented a Single Equality Scheme and Action Plan which provides an
overview in regard to how the College will meet its equality duty; how the College will handle any cases of
harassment and unlawful discrimination; how palicies, processes and plans will be monitored for adverse impact;
how the overall practice and outcomes of the College will be monitored; and how action will be planned and
delivered to address any concerns that are identified.

The Single Equality Scheme supports the monitoring of the protected characteristics of students and staff so that
continuous improvement can be achieved. The College will continue to meet these duties through the ongoing
development of the Single Equality Scheme and Action Plan,

The College considers all employment applications from disabled persons, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the
individuals concerned, and guarantees an interview to any disabled applicant who meets the essential criteria
for the post. Where an existing employee becomes disabled, every effort is made to ensure that employment
with the college continues. The College's policy is to provide training, career development and opportunities for
promotion which, as far as possible, provide identical opportunities to those of non-disabled employees.

The College is a ‘Disability Confident Employer’ and has committed to the principles and objectives of Disability
Confident standard.

The College has a Wellbeing Strategy for 5taff and continues to implement a variety of initiatives in support of
staff mental and physical wellbeing.

The College provides Equality & Diversity training and refresher training to all staff on an ongoing hasis.

The College publishes its annual gender pay gap report on the website.
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Disability statement
The College seeks to achieve the objectives set down in the Equality Act 2010:

1. Buildings are accessible (insofar as is practical), with ramps at each site to allow wheelchair access.

2. There is a list of specialist equipment, such as audio visual facilities, which the College can make available
for use by students.

3. The College has separate admissions policies for further education (FE) and higher education (HE). These
cover fair admission and the process in which to appeal an admissions decision.

4, The College has a number of Education Support Assistants and Student Support Assistants who provide a
variety of support for students who have learning difficulties or disabilities.

5. Counselling and welfare support are available via our Student Services team. Both counselling and welfare
appointments are available to students.

Trade union facility time

The Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017 require the College to publish
infarmation on facility time arrangements for trade union officials at the College.

Numbers of employees who were relevant union officials during the period FTE employee number
& 5.78
Percentage of time Number of employees
0% 0
1-50% &
51-99% 0
100% 0
Total cost of facility time £6,578
Total pay hill £23,000,826
Percentage of total bill spent on facility time 0.029%
Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time il
GOING CONCERN

Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Corporation considers that the College has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

The College has risen to the challenges in relation to the impact from the Covid-19 pandemic. 2020-21 has met
with some challenges in terms of elements of reduced income and the renegotiation of loans, but the College
has performed strongly and has significantly increased its cash balances. Following the College’s temporary
financial health rating for 2019-20 of ‘Requires Improvement’ due to the timing of loan refinancing
arrangements, the College's performance in year allows for a financial health rating of ‘Outstanding” for
2020-21, despite the Covid-19 pandemic,

Whilst catering and other commercial income has been significantly reduced in year due to periods of national
lockdown, as well as reduced tuition fee income and adult education funding as delivery was impacted, this
reduction has been more than offset by increased student income, both from significant over-recruitment of 16-
19 students resulting in receipt of in-year growth funds from the ESFA, and receipt of the ESFA’s 16-19 Tuition
Fund. This has been further supported by savings in staff costs and other operating expenses compared to plan.
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Going concern (continued)

Moving forward, the College has increased activity for the Core 16-18 funded students and, after consolidating
the pains of 2020-21, is on a continual trajectory for growth in this area as it is meeting the requirements to
improve guality, grow provision and work on efficiencies. The challenge of meeting growth in numbers created
by the lagged funding methodology makes it more difficult to increase potential surpluses. A surplus excluding
pension adjustment is planned as part of the 2021-22 budget, with the provision of a significant contingency.

Detailed work on the 2021-22 baseline budget and 2022-23 financial plan has been undertaken to ensure that
the College is able to meet needs and serve the local community. Any repeat of lockdown and Covid-19
measures would impact on the College. Sensitivity analysis has been undertaken to identify how the College can
address and manage this. There is a contingency built into the budget for the coming year alongside a surplus,
In addition, mitigation plans have been proposed and there are actions which can be taken to reduce costs.

Despite no increase in the funding formula for 16-18 students, and even taking into consideration the potential
in-year strain caused by the lagged funding model, the College is in a position to capitalise on its recent growth.
A year of consolidation is expected in 2021-22 from both progressing and recruited students, , and this is borne
out in enrolment numbers. Early recruitment of 16-18 year olds on study programmes is showing that the
College will meet its current targets, putting it in the position of a positive start to 2021-22. Further growth is
then expected in 2022-23 in line with demographic trends.

The majority of other sources of income are reasonably secure. Adult courses funded by the Greater Manchester
Combined Authority are at a similar level to the previous year, with some additional funds provided for late
achievements. Loan funded courses are at a slightly reduced level, but this has been factored into the budget
for 2021-22. The Higher Education market also rermains extremely competitive which may impact on the number
of students taking up their places at the College.

Apprenticeships have seen continued growth over the last year, and whilst conservative estimates remain in
place for 2021-22, this is income stream is expected to deliver. There are also other areas where income is likely
to increase from prior year levels as the country emerges from the pandemic.

Cash balances are planned to remain at the current levels over the next two years, with balances remaining
sufficient throughout the year, despite the cyclical low point in February and March linked to the ESFA payment
profile, With the consolidation of the year's growth in the core source of income, the College is expected to
continue on this trajectory.

Capital expenditure is at a conservative level to retain healthy cash balances. The College has sufficient space
to accommodate the anticipated growth in numbers and whilst reconfiguration and updating of the estate will
be progressed, it does not need to expand the estate. The focus is on ensuring it Is meeting Health & Safety
standards and running as efficiently as possible.

The continuing challenge to the College’s financial position remains the constraint on further education funding,
as well as inflationary pressures, whilst maintaining the student experience. This risk is mitigated in a number

of ways:

. By rigorous budget setting procedures and sensitivity analysis
. Regular in year budget monitoring

. Rohbust financial controls

. Exploring ongoing procurement efficiencies

As a result, the Corporation considers that the College has adequate operational resources to continue existence
for the foreseeable future,
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OTHER INFORMATION
Salford Academy Trust

Salford City College was the sponsor for Salford Academy Trust along with its education partners, University of
Salford and the local authority, Salford City Council. Salford Academy Trust was incorporated on 21 June 2012
as a company limited by guarantee. The Trust oversaw the conversion to Academy status of four schools since
September 2012 — The Albion Academy, Marlborough Road Academy, Dukesgate Academy and Irlam and
Cadishead College. The Salford Academy Trust is a related party of Salford City College and transactions with
the Trust are included in Note 25, The Academies within the Trust transferred to the United Learning Trust on
1 February 2019. The Trustees are in the process of closing the Salford Academy Trust. Following transfer, the
Trustees commenced a process of closure for Salford Academy Trust, with the Trust placed into solvent
liguidation on 10th September 2021.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There are no significant post balance sheet events.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

The members who held office at the date of approval of this report confirm that, so far as they are each aware,
there is no relevant audit information of which the College’s auditors are unaware; and each member has taken
all the steps that he or she ought to have taken to be aware of any relevant audit information and to establish
that the College’s auditors are aware of that information.

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 13 December 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

J. Flynn
Chair
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Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control

The following statement is provided to enable readers of the annual report and accounts of the College to obtain
a better understanding of its governance and legal structure. This statement covers the period from 1 August
2020 to 31 July 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

The College endeavours to conduct its business:

i in accordance with the seven principles identified by the Committee on Standards in Public Life
(selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and leadership);
ii. in full accordance with the guidance to colleges from the Association of Colleges in The Code of Good
Governance (“the Code”); and
iii. having due regard to the 2018 edition of the UK Corporate Governance Code insofar as it is applicable
to the further education sector,

The College is committed to exhibiting best practice in all aspects of corporate governance. In carrying out its
responsibilities, it takes full account of and complies with The Code of Good Governance for English Colleges
issued by the Association of Colleges in March 2015, which it formally adopted in August 2015.

In the opinion of the members of the Corporation, the College complies with the provisions of the Code, and it
has complied throughout the year ended 31 July 2021, The Corporation recognises that, as a body entrusted
with both public and private funds, it has a particular duty to observe the highest standards of corporate
governance at all times.

We have not adopted and therefore do not apply the UK Corporate Governance Code. However, we have
reported on our Corporate Governance arrangements by drawing upon best practice available, including those
aspects of the UK Corporate Governance Code we consider relevant to the further education sector and best
practice.

The College is an exempt charity within the meaning of Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011. The members of the
Corporation, who are also the Trustees for the purposes of the Charities Act 2011, confirm that they have had
due regard to the Charity Commission’s guidance on public benefit and that the required statements appear
elsewhere in the financial statements,
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Members of the Corporation
The members who served on the Corporation during the year and up to the date of signature of this report were

as listed below:

Member Date of Term of Office Role Committee membership Attendance
appointment Ends
Jackie Flynn Extended 31 July 2023 Independent Chair of Corporation 2222
14 Dec 2020 member Strategy Finance and Resources
[Chair)
Quality and Standards
Governance and Search (Vice Chair)
Remuneration (Chair)
Human Resaurces and Organisational
Development
Charles Davies Reappeinted 14 Dec | 31 March 2025 Independent Human Resources and Organisational | 9/10
2020 member Development {Vice Chair)
strategy Finance and Resources
Paul Johnson Reappointed 31 July 2024 Independent Audit [Chair) 12714
27 July 2020 member Remuneration
Anthony Redmoend Extended 31 July 2022 Independent Audit (to March 2021) 21721
2 July 2018 member Strategy, Finance & Resources from
June 2021
Human Resources and Organisational
Development {Chair)
Remuneration
Prof. Carole Roberts Extended 31 July 2023 Independent Human Resources and Organisational | 22/22
14 Dec 2020 mermber Development
Cuality & Standards {Chair}
Strategy Finance and Resources {Vice
Chair}
Remuneration (Vice Chair)
Governance and Search
Michael Sharples Extended 16 Dec | 31 Dec 2023 Independent Strategy Finance and Resources 7/8
2019 member
Joe Eyres 1 August 2020 31 July 2021 Student Quality and Standards 77
Michael Sheehan Effective from 3 July | Retired 31 Group Principal Human Resources and Organisational | 2/2
2017 December 2020 Development
Governance and Search
Quality and Standards
Strategy Finance and Resources
Rebecca Parks Effective from 12" n/a Acting Principal Human Resources and Organisational | 15/15
October 2021 Development
Governance and Search
Cuality and Standards
Strategy Finance and Resources
Pat Walkington Extended 31 July 2023 Independent Vice Chair of Corporation 2313
14 Dec 2020 member Governance and Search {Chair)
Hurman Resources and Organisational
Development
Remuneration
Quality and Standards (Vice Chair}
Audit [Vice Chair)
Paula Summersfield 16 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2023 Independent Strategy, Finance & Resources B/8
Member
Shane Thompson 16 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2023 Independent Strategy, Finance & Resources 5/8
Member
sally Kelis 20 April 2020 20 April 2024 Independent Audit 10410
Member Governance and Search
Army Vaughan 1 August 2018 31 July 2022 Staff CQuality and Standards a/8

Denise Hark ks the current Clerk to the Corporation,




Co-optees

The Corporation has also strategically appointed a number of Co-optees to serve on the committees most
appropriate to their skills. Co-optees are not members of the Corporation and do not attend Corporation

meetings.
Member Date of Term of Office Role Committee membership Attendance
appointment Ends

_Clir. John Walsh 26 March 2018 26 March 2022 Co-optee Cuality and Standards 1/3

James Hargreaves 23 Sept 2019 Resigned 31 Co-optee Strategy, Finance & Resources 1/3

July 2021

_Luey Robinson 27 July 2020 27 July 2024 Co-optee Audit Committee 474

Sam Butler 12 April 2021 11 April 2025 Co-optee HR& 0D Committes o/o

The governance framework

Itis the Corporation’s responsibility to bring independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy, performance,
resources and standards of conduct.

The Corporation is provided with regular and timely information on the overall financial performance of the
College together with other information such as performance against funding targets, proposed capital
expenditure, quality matters and personnel-related matters such as health and safety and environmental issues.
The Corporation meets at least once a term.

The Corporation conducts its business through a number of committees. Each committee has terms of
reference, which have been approved by the Corporation. These committees are Strategy Finance & Resources,
Human Resources & Organisational Development, Remuneration, Governance & Search, Quality & Standards
and Audit. The full minutes of all meetings, except those deemed to be confidential by the Corporation, are
available on the College's website www.salfordee.ac.uk or from the Clerk to the Corporation at the Corporation’s
registered address:

Salford City College
Pendleton College
Dronfield Road
Salford

ME 7FR

The Clerk to the Corporation maintains a register of financial and personal interests of the members of the
Corporation. The register is available for inspection at the above address,

All members of the Corporation are able to take independent professional advice in furtherance of their duties
at the College's expense and have access to the Clerk to the Corporation, who is responsible to the Board for
ensuring that all applicable procedures and regulations are complied with. The appointment, evaluation and
removal of the Clerk are matters for the Corporation as a whole.

Formal agendas, papers and reports are supplied to members in a timely manner, prior to Board meetings.
Briefings are also provided on an ad hoc basis.

The Corporation has a strong and independent non-executive element and no individual or group dominates its
decision-making process. The Corporation considers that each of its non-executive members is independent of
management and free from any business or other relationship which could materially interfere with the exercise
of their independent judgement.

There is a clear division of responsibility in that the roles of the Chair and Accounting Officer are separate.

Covid-19 impact

All Corporation and committee meetings were held either in person or using video conferencing during the
academic year 2020-21. The Emergency Planning Group which had been established in the previous year
continued in operation and considered the College's re-opening plans and the implications of Covid-19 on the
College.
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Appointments to the Corporation

Any new appointments to the Corporation are a matter for consideration of, and approval by, the Corporation
asa whole. The Corporation has a Governance & Search Committee consisting of 6 members of the Corporation,
which is responsible for interviewing and nominating new members for the Corporation’s consideration. The
Corporation is responsible for ensuring that appropriate training is provided as required.

Members of the Corporation are usually appointed for a term of office of four years in the first instance. The
Corporation noted the AoC good practice guide recommendation that two periods of four years were the
optimum. However, whilst noting this and broadly following this guidance, the Corporation ensures that the
needs of the College are always put first, The need for consistency, coherence and experience are prime
considerations. There has been a need to retain a number of very experienced governors over the past & years
to maintain continuity and stability in light of the fact that there have been very significant changes in senior
post-holders with 3 Principals, 3 Directors of Finance and 3 Clerks having been in post during this period. The
College has been able to retain governors from all three of the original colleges which merged to form Salford
City College Group, ensuring that the community it serves is represented.

Co-optees

The Corporation has appointed a number of Co-optees (4 at present to the Quality & Standards, Audit, Human
Resources & Organisational Development and Strategy Finance & Resources respectively) who serve on the
committees most appropriate to their skills. The Co-optees are not members of the Corporation, but are
strategically appointed to strengthen specialist expertise in selected areas.

Corporation Performance

The Corporation carried out a Self-Assessment of its performance against a wide range of criteria for the year
ended 31 July 2021, In line with the OFSTED criteria for Leadership and Management within the Education
Inspection Framework, it assessed itself as Good. This assessment is in line with the OFSTED view of Leadership
and Management undertaken during their inspection in December 2019, In addition, individual governor
development interviews are held by the Chair each year to assess training and development needs and secure
feedback on performance. The Chair's performance is evaluated by governors through a Chair's Evaluation
Questionnaire (drawn up from AoC guidance) and the results are considered by the Corporation and validated
by an external reviewer.

Remuneration Committee

In the year ending 31 July 2021, the College’s Remuneration Committee membership comprised five members
of the Corporation. The committee’s responsibilities are to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, and remuneration and benefits, of the Accounting Officer and other senior post-holders.
Decisions on remuneration are made following consideration of comparative, and other pertinent data,
including performance. The Corporation has not adopted the AOC's Senior Staff Remuneration code.

Details of remuneration for the year ended 31 July 2021 are set out in Note 8 to the financial statements.
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is comprised of four members of the Corporation {excluding the Accounting Officer and
Chair) and one Co-optee. The Committee operates in accordance with written terms of reference approved by
the Corporation. The Audit Committee meets on a termly basis and provides a forum for reporting by the
College’s internal, regularity and financial statements auditors, who have access to the Committee for
independent discussion, without the presence of College management. The Committee also receives and
considers reports from the main FE funding bodies as they affect the College’s business.

The College’s internal auditors review the systems of internal control, risk management controls and governance
processes in accordance with an agreed plan of input and report their findings to management and the Audit
Committee.

Management is responsible for the implementation of agreed audit recommendations and internal audit
undertakes periodic follow-up reviews to ensure such recommendations have been implemented.
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Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee also advises the Corporation on the appointment of internal auditors, reporting
accountants and financial statements auditors and their remuneration for both audit and non-audit work as well
as reporting annually to the Corporation,

The Audit Committee met on 4 occasions in the year to 31 July 2021, The members of the Audit Committee and
their attendance records are shown below:

Committee Member Meetings attended

Paul Johnson (Chair) 3/4

Pat Walkington 4/4

Tony Redmond a4

Sally Kells 4/4

Lucy Robinson (Co-optee) 4/4
INTERNAL CONTROL

Scope of responsibility

The Corporation is ultimately responsible for the College's system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Corporation has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Group Principal & Chief Executive, as
Accounting Officer, for maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the achievement of the
College’s policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which they are
personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to them in the Funding Agreement
between Salford City College and the funding bodies. They are also responsible for reporting to the Corporation
any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk
of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of College policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively
and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Salford City College for the year ended 31
July 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts.

Capacity to handle risk

The Corporation has reviewed the key risks to which the College is exposed together with the operating, financial
and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Corporation is of the view
that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the College's significant risks that
has been in place for the year ending 31 luly 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and
accounts. This process is regularly reviewed by the Corporation.

The risk and control framework

The system of internal control is based on a framework of regular management information, administrative
procedures including the segregation of duties, and a system of delegation and accountability. This includes:
« comprehensive budgeting systems with an annual budget, which is reviewed and agreed by the
Corporation;
= regular reviews by the Corporation of periodic and annual financial reports which indicate financial
performance against forecasts;
s setting targets to measure financial and other performance;
« clearly defined capital investment control guidelines; and
e the adoption of formal project management disciplines, where appropriate.
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The risk and control framework (continued)

The College has an internal audit service, which operates in accordance with the requirements of the ESFA’s Post
16 Audit Code of Practice. The work of the internal audit service is informed by an analysis of the risks to which
the College is exposed, and annual internal audit plans are based on this analysis. The analysis of risks and the
internal audit plans are endorsed by the Corporation on the recommendation of the Audit Committes. At
minimum annually, the Head of internal Audit (HIA) provides the Corporation with a report on internal audit
activity in the College. The report includes the HIA's independent opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of
the College’s system of risk management, controls and governance processes.

Covid-19 impact

In response to the pandemic, the Corporation established an Emergency Planning Group in the previous year,
comprising the Chair of Corporation, the Chairs of all committees, the Group Principal & Chief Executive, and
members of the senior leadership team. This Group reviewed the proposed arrangements being put in place by
the Group Principal & Chief Executive and senior leadership team. It continued in operation in year, and
considered the College’s recpening plans and the implications of Covid-19 on the College. The Group will
continue to operate whilst the pandemic and related risks remain.

Risks faced by the Corporation

The College has well-developed strategies for managing risk and strives to embed risk management in all that it
does. Risk management processes are designed to protect its assets, reputation and financial stability. The
governing body has overall responsibility for risk management. Individual risks identified are allocated to
appropriate Corporation committees, and reviewed as part of the reporting processes.

A risk register is maintained at the College level which is reviewed monthly by the senior leadership team, and
at least annually by the Audit Committee and more frequently where necessary. The risk register identifies the
key risks, the likelihood of those risks occurring, their potential impact on the College and the actions being
taken to reduce and mitigate the risks. Risks are prioritised using a consistent scoring system.

The Audit Committee directs the work of the internal auditors, who develop their annual plan taking a risk-based
approach, prior to submission to the Corporation for approval.

As a result of the significantly increased risk from the pandemic, additional action has been required, agreed and
implemented to facilitate the reocpening of the College in a Covid-19 safe environment. There is also additional
oversight in relation to the risk of cyber attacks as the College is further dependent on the use of technology for
blended and remote delivery.

Control weaknesses identified

The Corporation has not identified any significant intermal control weaknesses, and no high priority
recommendations or control risks were identified in the internal audits undertaken during the year.

Responsibilities under funding agreements

The Corporation has met regularly throughout the year and has ensured that its contractual responsibilities
under its funding agreements and contracts with the ESFA and Greater Manchester Combined Authority have
been met. Robust policies and standing operating procedures are in place to ensure compliance, which are
regularly updated, monitored and approved by the Corporation.

The Office for Students (OfS) requirements have also been complied with. During the year the OfS normally
require a Transparency return to be completed. However, this has been put on hold by the OfS due to the Covid-
19 pandemic, and in its place the Ofs have produced a reduced set of transparency information, drawing on
available student data. Arrangements are in place for the completion of the return when it is required once
more.
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Statement from the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has advised the Corporation that the Corporation has an effective framework for
povernance and risk management in place. The Audit Committee believes the Corporation has effective internal
controls in place.

The specific areas of work undertaken by the Audit Committee in 2020-21 and up to the date of the approval of
the financial statements are detailed below,

Internal audits

*  ESFA Mock Funding

e Examinations

= HR and Payroll

= Key Financial Controls — 5ales Ledger and Income
= Key Financial Controls — Purchase Ledger

= Curriculum Planning

« Follow-up of Previous Internal Recommendations

All of these audits were given substantial assurance, with no high-risk recommendations made.

Advisory reviews

e External Assurance of Sub-Contractors — this annual review is required for any sub-contracting activity.

Covid-19 impact

The planned internal audit review of the ESFA Funding was unable to be completed as a result of the lockdown.
This was replaced by a Covid-19 specific advisory review. Mo internal audits were delayed or altered as a result
of the pandemic, but have all been undertaken remotely as a result of the pandemic.

Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Group Principal & Chief Executive has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness
of the system of internal control. Their review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed
by:
= the work of the internal auditors;
¢ the work of the senior leadership team within the College who have responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the internal control framework; and
s comments made by the College’s financial statements auditors, the regularity auditors, and the
appointed funding auditors in their management letters and other reports.

The Accounting Officer has been advised on the implications of the result of their review of the effectiveness of
the systemn of internal control by the Audit Committee, which oversees the work of the internal auditor and
other sources of assurance, and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the
system is in place.

The Group Principal & Chief Executive and senior leadership team receives reports setting out key performance
and risk indicators and considers possible control issues brought to their attention by early warning mechanisms,
which are embedded within the departments and reinforced by risk awareness training. The Group Principal &
Chief Executive and senior leadership team and the Audit Committee also receive regular reports from internal
audit and other sources of assurance, which include recommendations for improvement.

The Audit Committee’s role in this area is confined to a high-level review of the arrangements for internal
control. The Corporation's agenda includes a regular item for consideration of risk and control and receives
reports thereon from the senior leadership team and the Audit Committee. The emphasis is on obtaining the
relevant degree of assurance and not merely reporting by exception. At its December 2021 meeting, the
Corporation carried out the annual assessment for the year ended 31 July 2021 by considering documentation
from the senior leadership team and internal audit, and taking account of events since 31 July 2021,
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Based on the advice of the Audit Committee and the Accounting Officer, the Corporation is of the opinion that
the College has an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk management and control, and has
fulfilled its statutory responsibility for “the effective and efficient use of resources, the solvency of the institution

and the body and the safeguarding of their assets”,

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 13 December 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

ol

R. Parks

J. Flynn
Accounting Officer

Chair
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Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

The Corporation has considered its responsibility to notify the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of
material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of funding, under the
Corporation’s grant funding agreement and contracts with the ESFA. As part of our consideration we have had
due regard to the requirements of the grant funding agreements and contracts with the ESFA.

We confirm on behalf of the Corporation, that after due enguiry, and to the best of our knowledge, we are able
to identify any material irregular or improper use of funds by the Corporation, or material non-compliance with
the terms and conditions of funding under the Corporation’s grant funding agreements and contracts with the
ESFA.

We confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been
discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the
ESFA,

The Corporation ensures that there are adequate and effective arrangements in place to ensure public funds are
managed appropriately, in line with the conditions of grant and the principles of regularity, propriety and value
for money, and to protect the interests of taxpayers and other stakeholders. This is done by ensuring that the
College operates within an agreed framework of policies and procedures which are reviewed and updated
regularly.

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 13 December 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

ot

J. Flynn R Parks
Chair Accounting Officer
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Statement of Responsibilities of the Members of the Corporation

The members of the Corporation are required to present audited financial statements for each financial year.

Within the terms and conditions of the College’s Grant Funding Agreements and contracts with the ESFA, the
Corporation, through its Accounting Officer, is required to prepare financial statements for each financial year
in accordance with the 2019 Statement of Recommended Practice — Accounting for Further and Higher Education
and with the College Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by the ESFA, and which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the College and the result for that year.

In preparing the financial statements, the Corporation is reguired to:
# select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently
* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

« state whether applicable Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements

¢ assessthe Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern, noting the key supporting assumptions,
qualifications or mitigating actions as appropriate; and

= prepare financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to assume that the
College will continue in operation.

The Corporation is also required to prepare a Strategic Report which describes what it is trying to do and how it
is going about it, including information about the legal and administrative status of the College.

The Corporation is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy, at any time, the financial position of the College, and which enable it to ensure that the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with the relevant legislation of incorporation and other relevant
accounting standards. It is responsible for taking steps that are reasonably open to it to safeguard the assets of
the College and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The maintenance and integrity of the College website is the responsibility of the Corporation of the College; the
waork carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors
accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were
initially presented on the website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Members of the Corporation are responsible for ensuring that expenditure and income are applied for the
purpases intended by Parliament and that the financial transactions conform to the authorities that govern
them. In addition, they are responsible for ensuring that funds from the ESFA are used only in accordance with
the Grant Funding Agreements and contracts with the ESFA and any other conditions that may be prescribed
from time to time. Members of the Corporation must ensure that there are appropriate financial and
management controls in place in order to safeguard public and other funds and to ensure they are used properly.
In addition, members of the Corporation are responsible for securing economical, efficient and effective
management of the College’s resources and expenditure, so that the benefits that should be derived from the
application of public funds from the ESFA are not put at risk.

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 13 December 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

J. Flynn
Chair
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Independent auditor’s report to the Corporation of Salford City College for the
year ended 31 July 2021

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Salford City College (the "College’) for the year ended 31 July 2021
which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Reserves, the Balance
Sheet, the Statement of Cash Flows and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information. The financial reporting framework that has been applied
in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice),

In our opinion the financial statements:

= give a true and fair view of the state of the College's affairs as at 31 July 2021, and of its income and
expenditure, gains and losses and changes in reserves, and cash flows for the year then ended;

*  have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

* have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice - Accounting for Further
and Higher Education; and

& meet the requirements of the Accounts Direction issued by the Office for Students (‘the OfS Accounts
Direction).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“15As (UK)) and applicable
law. Our respansibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the College in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinian.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Corporation’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the College's ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for
issue.

Dur responsibifities and the responsibilities of the Corporation with respect to going concern are described in
the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report and Financial Statements, other
than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Corporation is responsible for the other
information. Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are reguired to determine whether there is a material
misstatermnent in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Post 16 Audit Code of
Practice issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency reguires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept; or

o the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

= we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Regulatory Advice 9:
Accounts Direction issued by the Office for Students requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
= where applicable, funds from whatever source administered by the provider for specific purposes have
not been properly applied to those purposes and managed in accordance with relevant legislation; or
¢ where applicable, funds provided by the OfS, UK Research and Innovation (including Research England),
the Education and Skills Funding Agency and the Department for Education have not been applied in
accordance with the relevant terms and conditions; or
« the requirements of the OfS's accounts direction have not been met; or
» the provider's grant and fee income, as disclosed in the note to the accounts, has been materially
misstated; or
o the College's expenditure on access and participation activities for the financial year has been materially
misstated

Responsibilities of the Corporation

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities of the Members of the Corporation, the Corporation
is responsible for the preparation of financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, and for such internal control as the Corporation determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Corporation is responsible for assessing the College’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Corporation either intend to liguidate the College or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and with I1SAs {UK). Those standards require us to comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical
Standards for Auditors.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with |SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The specific procedures for this engagement and the extent to which these are capable of
detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:
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Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities including fraud

We identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and then design and perform audit procedures response to those risks, including obtaining audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

In identifying and assessing the risks or material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud and
non-compliance with laws and regulations we considered the following;
= The nature of the College, the environment in which it operates and the control procedures
implemented by management and the Corporation; and
= Qur enguiries of management and the Corporation about their identification and assessment of the
risks of irregularities.

Based on our understanding of the College and the sector we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance
with laws and regulations related to, but were not limited to;

* Regulations and legislation pertinent to the College’s operations;

* Compliance with the Post-16 Audit Code of Practice 2020 to 2021;

+ Compliance with the requirements of the Department for Education, Education & Skills Funding Agency

and the Office for Students;
* Compliance with the requirements of the Office for Standards in Education; and
* Compliance with Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme.

We considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material impact on the financial statements.
We also considered those laws and regulations which have a direct impact on the preparation of the financial
statements, such as the Statement of Recommended Practice - Accounting for Further and Higher Education
2019 and the Post-16 Audit Code of Practice 2020 to 2021,

We evaluated management and trustees’ incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the
financial statements (including the risk of management override of controls), and determined that the principal
risks were related to;

*  Posting inappropriate journal entries; and

= (Overstated Coronavirus lob Retention Scheme claims.

Audit response to the risks identified;

Our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following;

* Gaining an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable to the College and the
sector in which it operates;

=  Reviewing financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess
compliance with provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the
financial statements;

= Enguiring of management, the audit committee, the internal auditors and legal advisors concerning
actual and potential litigation and claims;

* Reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, reviewing internal audit reports and
reviewing correspondence with the Department for Education, Education & Skills Funding Agency, the
Office for Students and the Office for Standards in Education;

* |n addressing the risk of fraud as a result of management override of controls, testing the
appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; evaluating rationale of any significant
transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business; and

*  Substantive testing of Coronavirus lob Retention Scheme claims

We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team
members, and remained alert to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations
throughout the audit.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including
those leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This
risk increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance.
The risk is also greater regarding irregularities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud involves
intentional concealment, forgery, collusion, omission or misrepresentation.
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A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council’s website at www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Corporation, as a body, in accordance with the Funding Agreement published
by Education and Skills Funding Agency and our engagement letter.

Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Corporation, as a body, those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Corporation, as a body, for our audit work,
for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Wylie & Bisset (Audit) Limited
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditor

168 Bath Street

Glasgow

G2 4TP

Date: 13th December 2021
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Reporting accountant’s assurance report on regularity

To:
The Corporation of Salford City College and the Secretary of State for Education acting through the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA)

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 22nd September 2021 and further to the
requirements and conditions of funding in the ESFA's grant funding agreements and contracts, or those of any
other public funder, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether anything
has come to our attention that would suggest, in all material respects, the expenditure disbursed and income
received by Salford City College during the period 1 August 2020 to 31 July 2021 have not been applied to the
purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern
them,

The framework that has been applied is set out in the Post-16 Audit Code of Practice (the Code) issued by the
ESFA and in any relevant conditions of funding concerning adult education notified by a relevant funder, In line
with this framework, our work has specifically not considered income received from the main funding grants
generated through the Individualised Learner Record data returns, for which the ESFA has other assurance
arrangements in place.

This report is made solely to the corporation of Salford City College and the ESFA in accordance with the terms
of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the corporation of Salford
City College and the ESFA those matters we are reguired to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept, or assume, responsibility to anyone other than the corporation
of Salford City College and the ESFA for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Salford City College and the reporting accountant

The corporation of Salford City College is responsible, under the requirements of the Further & Higher Education
Act 1992, subsequent legislation and related regulations and guidance, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed,
and income received, are applied for the purposes intended by Parliament, and the financial transactions
conform to the authorities that govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
puidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Code. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our
work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received, during the period
1 August 2020 to 31 July 2021 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial
transactions do not conform to the authaorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Code issued by the ESFA. We performed a limited
assurance engagement as defined in that framework.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
conseqguently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters
that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive
opinion,

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity of the corporation’s
income and expenditure,
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The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

* Documenting the framework of authorities which govern the activities of the College;

= Undertaking a risk assessment based on our understanding of the general control environment and any
weaknesses in internal controls identified by our audit of the financial statements;

¢ Reviewing the self-assessment guestionnaire which supports the representations included in the Chair
of Governors and Accounting Officer’s statement on regularity, propriety and compliance with the
framewark of authorities;

 Testing transactions with related parties;

« Confirming through enguiry and sample testing that the College has complied with its procurement
policies and that these policies comply with delegated authorities; and

= Reviewing any evidence of impropriety resulting from our work and determining whether it was
significant enough to be referred to in our regularity report.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects, the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 August 2020 to 31 July 2021 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament, and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities
that govern them.

- O /
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4§ g~

Wylie & Bisset (Audit) Limited
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditors

168 Bath Street

Glasgow

G2 4TP

Date: 13 December 2021
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Salford City College
Statement of Comprehensive Income

INCOME

Funding body grants

Tuition fees and education contracts
Other grants and contracts

Other income

Investment income

Danations and Endowments

Total income

EXPENDITURE

Staff costs

Other operating expenses
Depreciation

Interest and other finance costs
Total expenditure

{Deficit) / Surplus before other gains, losses and tax
(Loss) / Gain on disposal of assets

(Deficit) / Surplus before tax

Taxation

(Deficit) / Surplus for the year

Actuarial (loss) / gain in respect of pension schemes
Total Comprehensive Income for the year

Represented by:
Restricted Comprehensive Income
Unrestricted Comprehensive Income

MNotes

All items of income and expenditure relate to continuing activities,

=] h N B W M

12
10

12

11

24

The notes on pages 36 to 52 form part of these financial statements.
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Year ended 31 July

2021

£°000

34,607
2,439
923
567

255

38,792

25,831
9,773
3,186

658

39,448

(656)

(656)

(656)

1,723

1,067

1,067
1,067

2020
£'000

30,325
3,030
761
903

17

35,036

24,135
9,468
2927

673

37,203

(2,168)

{2,168)

(2,168)
(7,851)

(10,015)

(10,019)
(10,019)



Salford City College
Statement of Changes in Reserves

Balance at 1 August 2019

Surplus / [deficit} from the income and expenditure account

Other comprehensive income

Transfers between revaluation and income and expenditure reserves
Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 luly 2020

Surplus / {deficit) from the income and expenditure account

Other comprehensive income

Transfers between revaluation and income and expenditure reserves

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 July 2021

The notes on pages 36 to 52 form part of these financial statements.

i3

Income and Revaluation Total
Expenditure reserve
account
£'000 £'000 £'000
8,525 607 9,132
{2,168) = (2,168)
{7.851) - (7.,851)
3z (32] -
(9,987) (32) (10,019)
(1,461) 574 [BRT)
(656) - (656)
1,723 : 1,723
3z (32} -
1,099 {32} 1,067
(363) 542 180




Salford City College
Balance Sheet as at 31 July 2021

Non current assets
Tangible fixed assets
Investments

Current assets
Stocks
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Creditors = amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets [ (liabilities)
Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors — amounts falling due after more than one year
Provisions
Defined benefit obligations
Other provisions
Total net assets / (liabilities)
Unrestricted Reserves
Income and expenditure account
Revaluation reserve

Total unrestricted reserves

Total reserves

MNotes

12

13

14

15

15

16

12
18

2021 2020
£°000 £°000
36,574 37,745
36,574 37,745
79 63
769 655
5,065 4,167
9,914 4,885
(5,646, (10,077)
4,267 (5,192)
40,841 32,553
(14,252 7,626
{26,181/ {25,576
(229' (238
180 (887,
(363 (1,461
5432 574

180 (887,

180 (887

The financial statements on pages 32 to 52 were approved and authorised for issue by the Corporation on 13 December 2021 and

were signed on its behalf on that date by:

1. Flynn
Chair

The notes on pages 36 to 52 form part of these financial statements.
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Accounting Officer



Salford City College
Statement of Cash Flows

Motes

Cash flow from operating activities

Surplus / (Deficit) for the year

Adjustment for non-cash items

Depreciation

{Increase) / decrease in stocks

{Increase) / decrease in debtors

Increase / (decrease) in creditors due within one year
Increase / (decrease) in creditors due after one year
Increase [ (decrease) in provisions

Pensions costs less contributions payable
Adjustment for investing or financing activities
Investment income

Interest payable

MNet cash flow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Investment income

Payments made to acquire fixed assets

Net cash flow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid

Repayments of amounts borrowed

Net cash flow from financing activities

Increase [/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents in the year

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 19

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 15

The notes on pages 36 to 52 form part of these financial statements.
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2021 2020
£'000 £'000
(656} (2,167)
3,186 2,927

(16) 17
{115} 149
1,391 {758)

848 (518)

(9) 15
2,328 1,605
(1) (17

286 319

7,241 1,572
1 17

{1,744} (1,674)

{1,743} {1,657)
(286} {3139)
(314) (2786)
(600} (595)
4,898 (681)
4167 4,848
9,065 4,167



Salford City College Report and Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 July 2021

Notes to the Accounts

1. Accounting policies

Statement of accounting policies and estimation techniques
The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with iterns which are considered
rmaterial in relation to the financial statements.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice:
Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2019 (the 2019 FE HE SORF), the College Accounts Direction for
2020 to 2021, and In accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard 102 = “The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland” (FRS 102). The College is a public benefit entity and
has therefore applied the relevant public benefit requirements of FRS 102,

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates, It also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the College's accounting policies.

Basis of accounting
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention.

Basis of consolidation

The College had one subsidiary company, Edlobs Limited, which was incorporated on & May 2011. Edlobs
Limited has nat traded during the year and the prior year. The College has elected not to prepare consolidated
financial statements on the basis that E4Jobs was dissolved on 17 November 2020, and the results of the
subsidiary at 31 July 2021 and at 31 July 2020 are immaterial to the Group.

In accordance with FRS 102, the activities of the student union have not been consolidated because the College
does not control those activities.

Going concern

The activities of the College, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and performance
are set out in the Annual Report of the Corporation. The financial position of the College, its cashflow, liguidity
and borrowings are presented in the Financial Statements and accompanying Notes., The financial statements
are prepared on a going concern basis notwithstanding that the College has reported a deficit of £656,000 for
the year to 31 July 2021 (2020: £2,168,000), net cash inflow of £4,898,000 (2020: outflow of £681,000) and at
31 July 2021 has net assets of £180,000 (2020: net liabilities of £887,000).

Consideration has been given to the ongoing COVID-19 global pandemic and the potential effects on the financial
position. The UK government has acknowledged that schools and colleges should remain open to provide high
guality education. The College receives the majority of its income from UK government through recurrent
funding, and in line with 2020-21, fully expects the funding to continue for at least twelve months, After
significantly increased enrolment levels in 2020-21, current enrolments for the 2021-22 academic year are on
target, and future year growth expectations are also increasing due to the progression of the College and the
demographic changes due over the next five years.

The College currently has £6.2m of secured loans outstanding with bankers. The College has no overdraft
faciality, but does have £9.1m cash available as at July 2021, The College had two bank loan facilities, and the
terms of the existing agreements are, at 31 July 2021;

i.  Thereisa £2,500,000 secured loan at a variable rate of 1.9% over base rate repayable over 5 years, but
with a ten-year payment profile, by quarterly instalments falling due between lune 2021 and March
2026, This loan was refinanced during 2020-21, as the previous 5-year loan period ended in March
2021, and to reflect the allocation of security to the bank, as well as an updated set of covenants., The
balance outstanding was £2,443,000.
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Salford City College Report and Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 July 2021

Notes to the Accounts (continued)

Going concern (continued)

ii.  Thereisalso a £5,375,000 secured loan at a fixed rate of 5.367% for the full 25-year term of the loan,
repayable by quarterly instalments falling due between August 2009 and May 2034. The College
renegotiated a contract variation in year, to reflect the allocation of security to the bank, as well as an
updated set of covenants. The balance outstanding was £3,768,000.

The Corporation has prepared cash flow forecasts for a period of 12 months from the date of approval of these
financial statements. After reviewing these forecasts, the Corporation is of the opinion that, taking account of
potential downsides and mitigations, including the potential ongoing impact of COVID-19, the College will have
sufficient funds to meet its liahilities as they fall due over the period of 12 months from the date of approval of
the financial statements (the going concern assessment period).

The College’s forecasts and financial projections indicate that it will be able to operate within the terms of its
existing facilities and respective covenant requirements for the foreseeable future.

Accordingly, the College has a reasonable expectation that it has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future, and for at least twelve months from the date of approval of these financial
statements, and for this reason will continue to adopt the going concern basis in the preparation of its Financial
Statements.

Recognition of income
Revenue grant funding

Government revenue grants include funding body recurrent grants and other grants, and are accounted for
under the accrual model as permitted by FRS 102, Funding body recurrent grants are measured in line with best
estimates for the period of what is receivable and depend on the particular income stream involved. The final
grant income is normally determined with the conclusion of the year end reconciliation process with the funding
body following the year end, and the results of any funding audits. 16-18 funding is not subject to reconciliation
and is therefore not subject to contract adjustments.

The recurrent grant from OFS represents the funding allocations attributable to the current financial year and is
credited direct to the Statement of Comprehensive Income,

Where part of a government grant is deferred, the deferred element is recognised as deferred income within
creditors and allocated between creditors due within one year and creditors due after more than one year as
appropriate.

Grants from non-government sources are recognised in income when the College is entitled to the income and
performance related conditions have been met. Income received in advance of performance related conditions
heing met is recognised as deferred income within creditors on the Balance Sheet and released to income as the
conditions are met.

Capital grant funding

Government capital grants are capitalised, held as deferred income and recognised in income over the expected
useful life of the asset, under the accrual model as permitted by FRS 102. Other, non-governmental, capital
grants are recognised in income when the College is entitled to the funds subject to any performance related
conditions being met. Income received in advance of performance related conditions being met is recognised
as deferred income within creditors on the Balance Sheet and released to income as conditions are met,

Fee income

Income from tuition fees is stated gross of any expenditure which is not a discount and is recognised in the
period for which it is received.
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Recognition of income (continued)
Investment income

Allincome from short-term deposits is credited to the income and expenditure account in the period in which it
is earned on a receivable basis.

Agency arrangements

The College acts as an agent in the collection and payment of certain discretionary support funds, Related
payments received from the funding bodies and subseguent disbursements to students are excluded from the
incorme and expenditure of the College where the College is exposed to minimal risk or enjoys minimal economic
benefit related to the transaction.

Accounting for post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits to employees of the College are principally provided by the Teachers’ Pension
Scheme [TPS) and the Local Government Pension Scheme [LGPS). These are defined benefit plans, which are
externally funded, and contracted out of the State Second Pension.

Teachers’ Pension Scheme [TPS)

The TP5 is an unfunded scheme. Contributions to the TPS are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions
over employees’ working lives with the College in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by qualified actuaries
on the basis of valuations using a prospective benefit method.

The TPS is a multi-employer scheme and there is insufficient information available to use defined benefit
accounting. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution plan and the contributions recognised as an
expensa in the income statement in the periods during which services are renderad by employees.

Greater Manchester Local Government Pension Scheme [LGPS)

The LGPS is a funded scheme. The assets of the LGPS are measured using closing fair values. LGPS liabilities are
measured using the projected unit credit method and discounted at the current rate of return an a high-gquality
corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least
triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to the operating surplus/{deficit)
are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred.

Met interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme
assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate
used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and
the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in interest and other finance costs.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in actuarial gains and losses.

Short term Employment benefits

Short term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences (holiday pay) are recognised as an
expense in the year in which the employees render service to the College. Any unused benefits are accrued and
measured as the additional amount the College expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement.

Enhanced pensions

The actual cost of any enhanced ongoing pension to a former member of staff is paid by the College annually.
An estimate of the expected future cost of any enhancement to the ongoing pension of a former member of
staff is charged in full to the College’s income in the year that the member of staff retires, In subsequent years
a charge is made to provisions in the balance sheet using the enhanced pension spreadsheet provided by the
funding bodies,
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Non-current assets — Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Lond and buildings

Land and buildings inherited from the Local Education Authority (LEA) are stated in the balance sheet at
valuation on the basis of depreciated replacement cost. Building improvements made since incorporation are
included in the balance sheet at cost. Freehold land is not depreciated as it considered to have an infinite useful
life. In compliance with relevant accounting standards, the buildings inherited from the local authority are
depreciated over the remainder of their useful economic life. Freehold buildings are depreciated over their
expected useful economic life to the College of 50 years.

Capitalised expenditure on buildings since incorporation is classified as property improvements. Property
improvernents are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their expected useful economic life to the College of
between 10 and 50 years,

Where land and buildings are acquired with the aid of specific grants, they are capitalised and depreciated as
above. The related grants are credited to a deferred income account within creditors, and are released to the
income and expenditure account over the expected useful economic life of the related asset on a basis consistent
with the depreciation policy. The deferred income is allocated between creditors due within one year and
creditors due after more than one year.

Finance costs, which are directly attributable to the construction of land and buildings, are not capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets,

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of any fixed asset may not be recoverable.

On adoption of FRS 102, the College followed the transitional provision to retain the book value of land and
buildings, which were revalued in 1993, as deemed cost but not to adopt a policy of revaluations of these
properties in the future.

Assets under construction

Assets under construction are accounted for at cost, based on the value of architects’ certificates and other
direct costs, incurred to 31 July. They are not depreciated until they are brought into use.

Subsequent expenditure on fixed assets

Where significant expenditure is incurred on tangible fived assets after initial purchase, it is charged to the
income and expenditure in the period it is incurred, unless it meets one of the criteria detailed below, in which
case it is capitalised and depreciated on the relevant basis.

Equipment

Equipment costing less than £1,000 per individual item is recognised as revenue expenditure in the year of
acquisition, unless it is of significant operating value to the College in which case the asset is recorded in the
College's asset register and depreciated over its useful economic life. All equipment with a cost in excess of
£1,000 is capitalised at cost.

Capitalised equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis over its useful economic life as follows:

«  General and technical equipment = between 5 and 10 years
«  Motor vehicles = between 5 and 10 years

*  Computer equipment — 5 years

*  Fixtures and fittings — between 5 and 10 years.

39



Salford City College Report and Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 July 2021

Notes to the Accounts (continued)

Non-current assets — Tangible fixed assets (continued)

Where equipment is acquired with the aid of specific grants, it is capitalised and depreciated in accordance with
the above paolicy, with the related grant being credited to a deferred capital grant account and released to the
income and expenditure account over the expected useful economic life of the related equipment.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fised assets
and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as expenditure in the period in which they are incurred.

Leased assets

Costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. Any lease premiums or incentives relating to leases signed after 1
August 2014 are spread over the minimum lease term. The College has taken advantage of the transitional
exemptions in FRS 102 and has retained the policy of spreading lease premiums and incentives to the date of
the first market rent review for leases signed before 1st August 2014,

Leasing agreements which transfer to the College substantially all the henefits and risks of ownership of an asset
are treated as finance leases,

Assets held under finance leases are recognised initially at the fair value of the leased asset (or, if lower, the
present value of minimum lease payments) at the inception of the lease. The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the balance sheet as an obligation under finance leases. Assets held under finance leases are
included in tangible fixed assets and depreciated and assessed for impairment losses in the same way as owned
assets,

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding
liability. The finance charges are allocated over the period of the lease in proportion to the capital element
outstanding.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment in the individual financial statements.

Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of their cost {using the first in first out method) and net realisable value, being
selling price less costs to complete and sell. Where necessary, provision is made for obsolete, slow-moving and
defective stocks.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash includes cash in hand, deposits repayable on demand and overdrafts. Deposits are repayable on demand
if they are in practice available within 24 hours without penalty.

Cash equivalents are short term, highly liguid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
with insignificant risk of change in value. Aninvestrment qualifies as a cash equivalent when it has maturity of 3
months or less from the date of acquisition.
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Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity are classified according to the substance of the financial instrument’s contractual
obiligations, rather than the financial instrument’s legal form.

All loans, investments and short-term deposits held by the College are classified as basic financial instruments
in accordance with FRS 102, These instruments are initially recorded at the transaction price less any transaction
costs (historical cost). FRS 102 requires that basis financial instruments are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, however the College has calculated that the difference between the historical cost and amortised cost basis
iz not material and so these financial instruments are stated on the Balance Sheet at historical cost. Loans and
investments that are payable or receivable within one year are not discounted,

Taxation

The College is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule & Finance Act 2010 and therefore it
meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the College is
potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by
sections 478-488 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992,
to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes,

The College is partially exempt in respect of Value Added Tax, so that it can only recover around 1% of the VAT
charged on its inputs. Irrecoverable VAT on inputs is included in the costs of such inputs and added to the cost
of tangible fixed assets as appropriate, where the inputs themselves are tangible fixed assets by nature,

The College’s subsidiary company, dissolved on 17" November 2020, was subject to corporation tax and VAT in
the same way as any commercial organisation.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when:

# the College has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event
» jtis probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation, and
» areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount expected to be requirad to settle the
ohligation is recognised at present value using a pre-tax discount rate. The unwinding of the discount is
recognised as a finance cost in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period it arises,

A contingent liability arises from a past event that gives the College a possible obligation whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the College. Contingent liakilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but
either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured reliably,

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but are disclosed in the Notes to the financial
statements.

Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Judgements in applying occounting policies

In preparing these financial statements, management have made the following judgements:

= Determine whether leases entered into by the College either as a lessor or a lessee are operating or
finance leases, These decisions depend on an assessment of whether the risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred from the lessor to the lessee on a lease by lease basis.

«  [Determine whether there are indicators of impairment of the College’s tangible assets. Factors taken into
consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic viability and expected future financial
performance of the asset,
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Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Other key sources of estimation uncertainty

Tangitie fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties, are depreciated over their useful lives taking into
account residual values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed
annually and may vary depending on a number of factors. In reassessing asset lives, factors such as
technological innovation and maintenance programmes are taken into account.  Residual value
assessments consider issues such as future market conditions, the remaining life of the asset and
projected disposal values.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number
of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used
in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these
assumptions, which are disclosed in Note 24, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. The
actuary has used a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation
performed at 31 March 2019 to value the pensions liability at 31 July 2021. Any differences between the
figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying
amount of the pension liability.
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2 Funding hody grants
2L 020
E'DDD D00
Recurrent grants
Edurataoe and Skills Funding Apency — Adu® [ducation Dudget 1% 134
Erfucation and Skills Funding Agency - 16-18 1084 18,502
Edfutataor and Skills Funding Agency - Aapranbesships. 2,883 2579
Crnater Mamchestor Comibinad Authority - Adult Education Budget 5,961 6,123
Oifice for Shudents 151 144
Specific grants
Educatice and Skills Funding Ag=ncy - Cond-14% sdckbional funding:
16-14 Tuition Fund a7 -
High valug coursas Tor schoal and coltags lamm s 13
Cowid- 19 mass testing funding 12
Groater Manchester Combined Authority - Coved-19 retated fanding 50
Teacher Pension Scheme contribution grant a7 e
Cither Education and Skills Funding Agency granks 276 -
iigher Edutation grants 241 o
Aedaatis of gEvernmant capital grast SRR 532
Total 34,607 30,325

The Corparamen was nal in Fecaipt of sy provider efeass schaims funding Troem the ESFA

Officsr Tiee Students {005] ragimened collogss are reguired o induda & noe anslysing grant and fee income eosved in & single addiional table. OIS reguiresents ovartap sith the
exkting stracture of Education amd Skilk Funding Agency’s [ESFA] finance record. An additional tahle is provided with the reguired anaiysis. As OFS anly requlates righer education in
colieges, only amaunts relating bo courses at level @ and above are recorded here

The Corporation hes been digitée to daim additional fundieg In year from gosemment support schemees In response to the cororaverus outbreak, The tunding recered for 16-19 Tulbion
Fund covered costs of £520,797 in 3020-21.

poori | w0

000 (g
@rant income from the Ofice for Students EEFS 351
Grant income from other bodies £ -
Fae incomme for taught swords [eucheive of WAT| 1,578 1435
Fu incorme o reseanch awards finchnee of WAT] I H
Fag inceeni from non-gualilying courses [asckeive of YAT) - -
Total M grant and tee mcome 1,970 1,155

1 Twition fees snd education contracts

o a0

E'DDD ED00
Adult education fees ar 5
Appremticeship dees and contracts 11& 47
Fees $ar FE ke jupporied couries 3R1 A&
Fiaps for HE loan supgerted ourse AL5 610
Total tstion faas 1,042 1355
Educabon oontracts 1397 14673
Tatal 2K T

A Ditfvir rants and canisacks

L 020

E'DDD DD
Corcedvrus lol Rlentian Scheme gred B 143
Additioesal Learning Suppaoet Elesim 3 BT B0
Orihar grants and contracts 13
Tatal 513 1

Following the temparany dosure of commiencal aperations, the Corperation turkasghed catering stalf and other staft suppaming commerdal acivities uder the Govarrment's
Cororavirus Job Retention Scheme. The fundeg received in respect of 40 memnbers of stafd of £80, 350 refates to staff costs, which are included within the ssaff costs note below as

Ipproprabe
5 Db In o
L 020
E'DDD DD
Catmring E2 &
Dihar incoevs gersraling actviliog 158 12
Miscellangous ncomo 107 45
Tetal 567 03
& Imestment income
Fuiral 2020
E'DDD EDD
DOther inberest recenmible 1 17
Tatal 1 17
7 Donations
boirl] Wz
(R 000
Unrastricted donaticns 255
Tatal 255 C

Tha College racognised an wnvastricted donation of £254,500 from the DIE in relation to laptops and iPads to suppdet disadvantaged lRamaers 10 aooess remate karning duning tha Covid-
15 pandemic.
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8 Seall costs
The sverage numbser of persans |including key B [ i} employed by the Collsge dunng ihe year, descrnbed 25 fdl-time squivalents, was
poori ] anen
LLH Ha.
Taaching skaft 31 56
s teaching staff 221 o
j31] s
The average number of persans |including key mae it p i loyed by the College during the year, on an average headcount basis, was:
il 2030
Ha, Mo,
Taaching seafl L] 155
Haon-teaching szafl 333 443
B 18
Syaft costs for th abewe parsons
pardd 020
£'000 ]
Wapes and sslaries 1801E 17551
Increase | [ruleasa) of holiday pay accrual 11 40
Social security cists 1Bl 1,712
Oihar pangion cakls [inc. FRS1ONIE UL} adpestmants £1,058% (2000 £1,2518)) 5,745 4,703
Payroll sub total 25,584 23,706
Contracted out staffing serices 157 M)
25,741 pEE
Restructuring oosts — Contractual a0 158
Tatal staff costs 25, 24,115

The Conporation akso makes awaitable to staff salary sacrdice soremes for childcare vouchers, Ride 1o Waork and Home Technology. Staff costs are recorded at the full pross value before
the deduction of the salary sacrifice.

ey managesmestt parsannel

Wy maragement personnal are those persons having authority and responsibilty for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Colloge and are represented by the Senior
Leadershio Team (SLT], shich comprises: the: Groop Frincipad B Chiel Executive [urdil 31 December 2020|, Deputy Princpal {until 11 Dctober 2020, and then &cting Frincipal fram 12
Dictober 2020), Chief Finsrcil Officer, Vs Principal |Academic), 'ice Principsl |'Wetare, Safepuarding & Pastorad Carel, Wice Precpal {Central Semvices), Direcior of Apprecgiceships &
Business Development, Director of Operations Manegement, and Oirector of Muman Besources,

Robes and rasponsibiivies of ST were feviewed as part of the divelepmant of the Callage’s past-Coad sirategic glan, A redtructune ook eMect fom 1 lune 3021 10 reflect this, and the
enemibers of ST did fon charga as @ rasuit.

Staff costs inclute comnpersation paid to Rey management persanned for ioss of ohfice.

b of key personmed, A ing Officer 3 other higher paid stafd
B Fid]
Ha, Mo
The number of kisy masagenent persenal moudng the Accoosting OMzer was: il ]
The numbrer of key masagermen perscneel and otfer $all wha recenond srinial emcl i, nachading T c Bt ba ralcrul raurance and perrsces but induding
Drsafing i ke, in this doloving raesges was:
K&y manaperment percnnel her staff
FL 208 poirad FL]
R, o, P M.
35,001 to £30,000 1.
EA0,D01 o £45 000 - B
E30,001 bo £55 000 v Flb ot
£535,001 to £60.000 1 F
EE0,001 o £65,000 F Wl 4
55,001 to £70,000 3 4 2 1
ET0,001 bo £75,000 2 1
£75,001 bo £80,000 1.~
CA0HIL bo LRS00 1
£85,0011 ta £90,000
EH001 b £95,000 i
L1001 o 145, 000 1
£ a 10 1
d reprassnts the pro rata sslary of & senior postholder sppointed part way theough the yess |l year sabary equivalent withie the E80001 1o 25,000 range)
L includis & pagment in bew ol helidays ot taken by 8 senior pestholder sppcinted (lull yesr salary equavslent within the 70001 ta £75 000 range|

e ieehastes e pra rata salary, including a payment in lieu of haldays nol taken, of the Group Principa & Chiel Execulive leaving pan wary teough the yeae |fall year salary
equbalent within

=EEr rRpresents thi pro rala saary for rewly sppainted Heads of Centre as part of the College's academic manageenest mostiatune (ull te aquivalin withen £60 001 10 B55,000 range)
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8 Stald cosis (contieued)

Exy marapement pemonnal compensation = made up o fodows: board 8 2020
(] (o]
fibac palary G5 652

Perfermanca ralatad pay and banus - -
Compensation for loss of office

Employer's Matkonal Insurance Bd En
Benedits in kind - -

Permion ontnbutors 14% 1
Total key pernern 1 camg ian [ #53

Thare were no compensasbion paymends made bo key meragement peronnel m 2000-21 [2019-20 £ril},

Thare wid 10 drtoiireent amounts dos 1o key management parannel that wers wanad in 307031 or 2009-20. With négand 1o salary sacrifice armangesnts, ors mambar of kisg
maragemen personnal uwed the Childcane Vouchar Schama.

Thare has been more thar one Accoonting Officer ot the College during 2020-21. The Group Frincipet & Chiefl Executive receved amoluments 1 dogust - 31 December 2020 and was the
Arcowrrting Officer from 1 Augest - 11 Ocbober 20000 The Deputy Prncpal became the dcting Principal srd Accounting Hficer om 12 October 2020 and has been the Mighest pasd
mismnber af staff dering Ehe pear, The Attieg Princigal remained on he Deputy Privciual salary Tor the durstion of the linsecial year, Their pay and remuneratian i s follow:

mzl 20Z1 Fairdl 2020
@roup Precipsl Acting Principal Total Group Principal
& Chinf Lxecutive  and highest paid & Chinf Executive
(ermobaments for member of safl [ermahaments for
LAUE20B0 - [amolumsnts e full yiar)

31 Dec J020) 1 Ausg 020 -

31 Jul 2021}
e ] £000 £'000 e
Himir satary &1 a2 156 145
Performance related gy and banus - - - -
Ervgdosper's Matianal lnsurancs a 12 m 1
nhar including benafits in kind - - .
Peredon contrbutiors 14 a2 ] 14
L1 §25 21 1M

Thare are no other remunerabon payments fo the Head of Provides, mohkleg no payments i lisy of persion contribubions.

Tha gernrring bady sdagted AoC's Senior Stall Remunaratian Code in luly 2019 and assesses ay in ine aith it principhes
Tha nerarsration package of Sanior Fost Holders, namily the Group Priscgal & Chief Executhos, Chisf Finandial Officer, and Deputy Princpal, ane subject bo annual révics by the
Remuneration Committee of the goveming body who fustify the remuneration on the grounds of performance and using benchmarking isdommation ko provide objective guidance. The
roup Principal & Chief Executve reports to the Chair of the Corporabon who ovenees an annual review of perfformance agaret the Colege's overall ohjechyves using both qualitatye
snd guantitatere measures of performence. The Remunerstion Commitbes assesses the Corporation’s perdormance against tarpets and objectives, inchiding the sttainment of studsrds
i the pear, s will as the progress against the College's lorg term vrstegic chjedtives when reviowing the mmucecstion packsge al the Seniar Pest Helders. Quaktstive meeos af
wustok, sk ak havel of engagement of the salf and studants ane st cons dired

The remurerstion package of other key management staff = subject to annual review and approval by the Group Principal & Chief Executive, who ustdfiss the remuneration on the
grounds af performance sgared the Coflege's overall ohjectves wing both qualitative and quanditative measures of periormerce

The kel of pay for sl key management personnel s benchmarked against the pay of simile tolleges = the priad financisl vear, biken fBom their lineecial statements, and the general
wriend within 1ha sector is st considered

Rakes and e i of SUT were raviawed at gart of the developmant of the Callage's past-Covid sritegie plan. A restructurd 1eok ¢ffoct from L lune 2021 to relacy this, and the

memhers of ST did mot chang® as a resull. Tha resbreciune was anprosed by Beruneration Commitiee and subsequeraly Corporabion for the Senior Posthalkders and by Corparation for

in 2020-21, the Corporation excesded s srs and chjecties, inchuging for stafl sativfaction, siudent numbers and student achievemant. An inflaticnary pay increese of 1255 was
avearded 1o 8l lal, induding key masagemen pessennal,

Relationskds of highast paid mambser of stadls pay and remuneration expeessed a5 a multiphe: 02 2020

Group Principal & Chief Executee's basic salary a3 2 mulbgde of ihe median of 38 staff, where the medizn pay i caloulated on a full time 33 51
epayalent basis for the salaries paid by the growvicler o its stalf

Grnup Principal & (Rl Exgcutive’s botal ramuneration as a mulliple of the edian al all s1all, whsre the medan gay is calculated on @ ful 3.4 51
time ey aent basks for the salaries pald by the prosider 1o its staf!

Compaensation for keds of office paild to former key management personnal and other kigher paid scatl

aori '} 020
i L
Companiation paid 10 tha Tormer post-holdes 10 -

Estimated vabsee of otfer benefis, induding grovisons for perafon beneflis .
The Accounting Gfficer did not receive any seversnce payments or compensation for loss of office in 2020-21 {5005-20; none|
Wi b of kuy mansgamant parsanned recepd any SOTance Eaymints of corgsnsation for ke of offics in 0002 {3019 00: nema)

O member of higher pasd stadt received comoensation bor kes of offkce in PIR0-21 {2015 200 none). The severance payment was approved by the CoPege's 5UT and reponed 1o
Corporation.

The members of the Corporation chher than the Accourding Officer and the wtoff member did not receive any poyment from the inst@ubon otfer than the reimburssment of frevel and
subrienoe axpereaas incurred m the cowrse of their dutes,
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9 Diifes operating expenses
paora g 20
£'00
Tuaching coats FRIES 2,584
Man-tgaching ceess 4,337 LR
Pramisas costs 3,432
Tatal 9,773 9468
Otiver operating expenses inchede: F.iri § 2020
£'000 E'DoD
Auditory’ remuneration;
Financis! sLatements ke * k5 a6
CrtPaer ditviazes pramidad by inaszial g auditer ** x 2
imemnal adt dees 12 15
Subloniraciing Assurance Repard 1 2
Citbenr seryaces pronded by the intarnsl sodtors *9% - 1
Paymaits 1o Subsoniresion 118 1555
Depreciation &+ 3,185 22T
biire of assets under operpting lesses [ [3r]

*  Tres amount includes an estimate of £4,200 provided by te College's Exterral Auditcrs for the rew Funding Aud. This s a new requiremest for 2020-21, and the actuad charge
may reduce if the amcand of time taken io complete i less than has been estenated. In additon, & lote charge of £8, 1008 @ refabon to the 2019-20 feandal statements suds has been
weurred in 2000-11
"*  Fees incurmad in ralation to The Accses B Partacipation Auda sed the Teachars' Pansion Sudit

Faias incurmed in refation to an additicnal ad hoc report on Specdic ssuas in 2013.20
* |ndudes £154,500 in respect of the unresiricted donation of laptops and @ads from the DFE, which have been depredated in full in-pear {see Mote 75

Ba fccess and participation spending
15 registarad coleges with stemss and partaspation plans are regqund 1o disckoss spanding in up to tour calsgures in @ weparata vole:
0L 020
£'D00 ]
- ACCEsS rwesimant EUNEE] 39,307
- Financial support b0 wtudents 17,150 217
- Dinsbility Support 1,0 1ACE
- REaanch and s auates [Falating ta accais and pamicipation] 37,805 2045

Judgements and Assumptions

Booess and participation oosis Rave bees iercfied 3 relating to speciic parts of the pfas |avafable on the Coflege’s webshe a1 saford ac ukiacoes and- pamiipation] and Bawe bees reviewed by
maagem et xs par of the annual budiger review. The resiew ensircs hat the spend is in lne with forecasted spend and That it can déarly be aestfiod that those tudents needing The maost Suppor
B bees i recept of that. The buk of the spesd will aiwarps be artributed 10 e SoThr ks 00 reach pote nial ShU0ents S0 SURPOTT Dl SNgagemEnt mith them

Tha conts in thess catwperims arw vary ditinet, All weents, teater prvsinm, mackelisg, pehlcations asd waions with N student wippert staff see 1o enhancs amarenes of cosrees bs dudents from
enderrezresentnd groups and coasd ss “Access insestment”, Tue to the mindemic wae berae had fewer opporturitn [o conduet in pessan achities in suppnrt widening scoew 1o Higher Educstion and
Faran matmard focused on wrtual smsicns aed otfer prosmctional sctrabion. &2 itional time hm abe been devoied fo the maragesant of the sctrtbe b wppert the APP and to nrdaw and maluaie B
porformance and wrima of such activitis.

M manes paid directly to siudenss, such as bursanes o one off hardship paymerss are directyy relaed to the "Tinancal suppont” catepary. &ny Anencial suppoet to dsabled swdens, or adjsiments
made n the University Cenire, of leaming supgorts costs mosld he dvectly atirbatable 1o “supear for disabled susents™ ad Snally Vesearch and ewaluation” costs wil be atirbuied 1o the time spent
oy & range ol maragement howrs in revewing the plam and evaluation of its effectivenass.

Staf cadls aw appartard en the By of 1% of the Sotal grees pay o sevaral sal, and B bl com loe e HE aod Sccash Supsa i Ofices. This s confiimisd by lime manigirs and desios manages in
Firs waith thasr rofi ard reigordibll @ b2 the APP.

10 Interust payable and other Faente cosls

poiril 020
E'DDD ED00
On bank losms, overdrafis snd other lnsrs 286 ny
On franos ages -
et iterest on defined peraion labdliy (Mote 24) s 334
Total LS8 (74
11 Tanation

The members do not bebeye that the Collage was lisble for sny comporation tas sising cut of its ackrities dunng sither year,
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12 Tangible fised asse1s

Cast o valuathsn
Mt 1 Ausgust 2020
A=zets under consiructon transferred
Acicktions
Digenaly
Disgevials = fdly daprociated agsals

An 30 buly 2021
Depreciation
AL Auguat 2030
Charga Tor this year
DCospoeals
Dispeals — fully depreciated asseis

A ¥ fuiby 2ORT

Met book walue a1 21 July 2021

bt B walue at 31 July 2000

Freehodd Land Property Fixtures & Equigment Aty b the Todal
mndd Buildings Improvements Fisbings course of
coeitruction
i) £000 £'DDD i g i i
36,724 17040 1,374 3,516 1oy 58,872
B 1 11 (rli) H

1468 ] 60 121 25
36,723 18,517 1,545 2057 4 60837
11450 EM 503 2407 - .17
TEE 1349 145 a5 3,186
12110 8,020 58 L7 - 24,510
L, 10,483 Dy = 3 o Licd
25,174 10362 BRI 1,119 107 37,745

{hher targible froed assets inherbed from the Local Education Aghorty at inconporation heve been valoed by the Colege or o deprecisted replacement cost bavis with the ssaistance of indepercent professional adwce,

Thare are noe asats Fald under finanos leases.

13 Non-carrent investments

IrraRsirnen i subsidiary comaanies

Tetal

The Coliege cwned I00% of the issued ardinary £1 shares of E4lohs Umined, & company inconparated in England and Wales. Edlohs Lisited was incorporated on & May 2001, the
wrindpal acthity being apprenticeship franing. Eddobs Umeed experienced na trading during the year and the Coflege made one payrend of £2 in respect of a filing fee for Eobs in the
year [M319-20: cost of £163 for 2 filing fee and penafy charge). As the company bad not traded for some years, an spplication was made to Companies Houss 1o dissolve the company.
Tha company was dissoéved on 17 Movember 2050 and a s#t of sccounts for the period erding 17 Novermber 2020 wos soborstted to HMES m Ageil 2021,

14 Trads and atbar riceivabiles

Bmoints falling due sithm one year
Trade recebvables
Relapd party debiars [Note 25%
Prepayments and accroed Incoms
Armounts owed by the ESFA

Tatal

15 Creditors: amcunts faling due within one year

Bark loans |Mote L7)

Paymonts received in advanco

Trade payables

{hher taxation and social securdy

Accruats and defered income

Hedidiny piry acenaal

Dufarred ingoma = giveenmant capital grasts
Fimad assat oraditor

her ored itors

Mhmounts owed to the E5FS

Tental

16 Creditors: amcunts faling due atter one year

Bard boans [Note 17]
Deferred income — government capital graras

Tatal

47

ks 1020
E'DDD EDOG
113 17
= E|
388 =L
258 135
s s
bord ] anzn
i'nog Con
43 B5I6
303 risn)
74 B0L
azh oy
LM 1.4
4 54
A3 513
IB1 b}
431 325
506 o
5,k 10T
vl anzn
£'nod o0
5,778 E
2,874 ThIE
14,257 T4
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17 Maturity of debt

{al Bank loans

Bank lasm are regaypabln a5 follows

I e year oF b

Botween one ard fee years
Hebween bac and fue yesrs
In free years or move

Tatad

At X1 paly 2021, the Collepe had fwo bank losn Facilities, sach repayable in quartedy |

434
a5z
4,08
L61E

6,213

anzn
£000
B5lE
6526

[Th & £2.5m secured kun ot & varisble erest rate of Base Rabe plog 1.9%, The kan b bar 5 yeees Tram March 2021, with s 10-year payrsnt geofile, This kan was reflicanced

durieg HIZ0-2E, Thus mosing ha Sabilny ram short Tarm 1o kg term in vear,
Jii} A ES.375m sacured loan at a Thad rate of 5.367H. The koan i repayabie ower X5 years Bromm May 2009 1o May 2034,

{11 Fararce lnases

Th Collage does pot have any linance Mase asfigations,

13 Prowislons
Defined benefit Enhanced Total
[ o] [N 000
AL Angust 20D 5576 P 25804
Expanditure in the pedod (1327] {17 {LE44)
Additkons In perod 1532 T 1535
iy 51 by 201 ELRLI v 410

Defined beredit oblgations relabe to the labilties under the College’s membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme. Further detalls are given in Note 24,

The enhanced pension provision relates to the cost of staff who heee alresdy lef the Colege's employ and commibmerds for reoganeabion costs froem which the Colege cannok

duasanably withdriw 8 the balance sheal date, This provivis kay Been recaladated in adcerd snce with padance ssed by the hording haodied

The principal assumpkions for this calkcutabion are

poori ] 020
Price inflatinn 1E5 1.10%
Disail rate 1608 1.40%
19 Caahk and cash equivaiends
At 1 August 2020 Cash flows AR 1 buly 2021
roon (] (e
Lok and cash equrialerdy A 167 A.ROE 065
Berd cranrddraln - = -
Tetal 3167 agse LS
20 Cagital cammibmanly
0L 2020
£'000 fag ]
Commitrrerts contracted for at 31 July 1as 11t
1 Liwie obligaticns
At 31 July the Collepe had moramum legse paymants under nor-cancelable cparsting lesses oy fallows:
poiFa ] 020
Fufliire mimirm lase prymants dua: £'000 £000
Larmed aind Beadldings
Haot later tham one year 534 =
Latar than cne year nok later than frue years 1843 2182
Later then fue yesrs 12,757 15112
EREES 15545
Dihar
Mat later than ona year 104 &3
Later than one yeasr not lader tham fiwe pears 13z B
Loter than free years
235 =2 ]
Tertal lnwse payments dus 15,360 15915
22 Contingencies.

# former amployes has issued amployment tribunal proceedings against tha College in respect of dimial in 2020-21, daiming disability decimination. The Colage’s logal advisen
assert that the daim & cut of time and are assisting with our inital response, bowever this will be 3 decision for the Employment Tricaral, At this stage, the level of finandal claim has
ot bear put forwasd by the Clasmant. Howeyer, should the matter progress Ayviva Fave advised that the College woald be liable for the first £15,000 of any potential pword. ina wiew of

the uncetsingy and level of claim, no finsrcal proyiece has bean made in these acoorgs o refaton bo this matter

23 Events after the reporting period

Thare are no events atter the reporting period,
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24 Defined benedit chigations

Tha College’s amployess balong bo two prencgal post-employment benefit plare: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme England and Wales {TPS) for scademic ond relsted stedf; snd the Greater
Manchester Locel Gowvernment Pension Scheme (LGPS) far non-Sesching wiaff, ahich s meraged by Tamesids Coundl, Bath sre multi-employer defined-benedit plars

The permce coaks are assessed in sccondance with the advce of indeperdant qualified actusries. The latest farmal sctuarial valyation of the TFS was 51 March 2009, and of the LGPS
was 31 March 38,

Tatal peasian cost for the year by 2020
£'0D0 ED0d
Teachers' Pensaon Scheme: contributions pald 2,865 2,041
Loeal Govecnment Pansion Scheme;
Contribitaes pai an 1,179
F=5 100 |28} charga 1,955 1,158
Charge to the Stabemera of Comprefensive Inoomss 3,278 2430
Enhancad pevsion charge 1o Satament of Comprahaeniae iroams £ 12
Total Penston Cost bor Year within statf costs 5745 4703

At 3L July 2021, there was £433k outstanding ernployer's contributions due to the twea scremes [£2B8k TPS and E150k GMPF) which were both pakd cuer in Supast 2020 |2019-20: £298k
E153k TPS and £105k GMPF.

Teachars' Pernicn Scheme

The Teachars’ Pension Scheme (T85] is a stabstory, contributory, defined berahs scheme, poverned by the Tepchens' Permon Scheme Regulstiors 2004, Thes= regulations apply to
Teachert indchaak, colleges s othir edusatiuns bl 1y, Membenkep i i Tor becke s and leciurers ot elgible instiutions. Teachers and lecturérs sre able to ap
ot al the TRS.

The T85 & an wrdunded scheme and memkars contribute on & ‘pey a3 you po’ basis — these contributions, slong with those made by ermployers, srecradited ta the Dufequer urder
artangements pirmrned by the above Agt, Retirerment and ather geralon benefits sre guid by public funds provided by Pardiament

Lireker ther dedin?tinn sef oot FRS 10T (TR 11}, the TRS & a rulti-amployer geecion plas. T College i unable bo idanify it shane of the untderyvieg ety and Rabilities of the glan.

Aecoedinghy, the Colage has taken sdvontape of the esempticn in FAS 102 and hos accounted for its contnbubors o the scheme ax iF it were & defined-contnbution plan. The Collegs
has set gut above the isdormation availabée on the plan snd the implications for the Collepe in terms of the antopated contnbution rates,

Tha waluation o the TPS is-camied oul in line with regulations made under the Publc Senvice Pension Act 3003, aluations credit the teachers’ pension sccount with a real rade ol returm
szauming funds are invested o noboral swesiments that produce that real rate of return

Tha latest actuarial raview of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 20013 The valuation rapor was publsied by the Departenees for Education |the Departmera} in Aprl 2015,

The walustion reporied total scheme liabfities [pensions currently o papment and the sstimated cost of foture benefits] for serdice 1o the effectve date of £218.100 mMion, and nobonal
azzets fetimpted fubere contributions together with the nobonal inyestmants kald st the vabeaton date) of £196, 100 mdlion giveg s noboral past s=rvice defict of £22.000 miflicn

Ais 3 resu® of the waluation, new employer coniribution rates were set 2k 23, 68% of pensionsble pay {includrg the somissstrabice levy of 0.0B%) from Sepiember 2019 crwards
{eompared o 16,485 dunng 1018-19). The Department has sgreed to pay o teacher permion employer contritution gree to cover the sdditional costs during the 200011 scademic
AT

A full copy of the valuation report and supporting documerdation can ke found on the Teachers' Penskon Scheme websde.

Tha perescr costs paid to TES i the year amoynbed bo 0,856 386 (301520 £3 141 0004

FRS 100 [24)

Under the definftions sef ot in FRS 102 (22.11}, the TF5 & a rultl-employer peradon plan The College s unable to ideni#y s share af the undedyirg ssets and labiliies of the glan.

Arcordingly, the Colepe has taken schontaps of the esempticn in FRS 102 and has accounted far its contribubiors bo the scheme g if it were 8 defined-contnbution plan, The Collegs
s sel oul abi the information availatde an the plan sed the implications Tor the Cellnge in teems of the antcpaled conkribution rates,
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24 Defincd besedit obfigations [contisued)

Local Gevernment Fensicn Scheme

Tha LGPS i & Tundad defined-banedit alan, with apsets hedd in separato Tunds administecad by Tamagide Local Asthorty. The totad centribution mada Tor the year eedad 31 July 2038
s EL 734 00B of which emmployer's contributions totaflaed £1,321,620 and employees’ contributions totalled £412,327. The agrisd conbributhon rates for fusune years are 20.7% for

empioyers, and range from 5.5% to 12.5% for employees, depending on salary according 1o a natonal scale,

Priscipal Actuarial Assumgtions

The fiollowerg isdormation is besed upon a full sctuaral valuaton of the fumd a5 at 31 March 2009 updated to 31 July 2021 by a qualified indepandent actuary, Hymans

Robertson LLP.

Raie of increase i satarkes

Future pensions moeasss

Drecount rate for scheme fiahiities
Inflation Essasgition {CP)
Commatation &l persions o lump sums

A1 31 July 2021

2E0H
ZEYVN
L
LES
G5 .O0AC

A1 31 Juiky 2020
3.00%

120%

1A0%

120

S5.00%

The carent mortalty assumptions include suffickent allowance lor fubure imorossments i mortal ity mtes. The assamed life expectations on retirement age 65 arne:

Reniving today
Mol

Femakes
Reliving in 20 pears
Males

Famalkes

The Colluge's share of the assens in the plan 82 The halance sheel date and the expecied rates ol miim were;

Long-term rafe of Fair Value
refurn sxpecked ot 1 fualby BONL

al 31 July 2021

ET0
Eyuithics TLO% 3E561
Bonds 15.0% £147
Property 0% 33259
Cash B 4.3a5
Total fair walue of plan asyets 54911
Welghted average expecied bong temn rate of rebem 1E%
Actusld refurn on plan assets !lil-?

The amunt inchuded in the balance sheet In respect of the defired benefit pension plan and enhanced pension benefits s 2 follows:

Fair walua al plan aseti

Prisaed wakes of plas liskslitas

Net pensicns (iability] § asset

il gnised in the & of Comprehensive Income in respect of the plan are g Folloms:

Amounts included o stall cosis
Current service cost
Past service oost

Tatsd

i vchsded i intenest pryabd

Mt intarest an defeed pansion liakdivg

At 31 July 2021 AR 3 buly PO
205 s
ik ¥
213 prA
253 5.0

Long-term rate of Fawr Value
rehan pxpected st B1 July 2030
at 3§ haby Q0

END0d

BT.OM 29,713

120 1.9E7

T 3,106

e 3550

44,470

1.a%
—thdy

p.uri | FLd]

000 (]

34,311 44,370
[A0a81] 1688465
125,181 {25,575}

gy 020

£'DDD (yiii]

3,283 2,513

= (125

3,263 pATL]

13738 354y

L 353}
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Ammounts recogrised in Otsr Comprehenshog Incoms O 2020
E'DDD ENDO
Return an gerdion plen axsets B ga2 |3.585)
Experience gains [ (kndas) arsing e defined henefit abbgations 1012 A3ED
Changss in assumptiors undarkying the procent value of plan Babftes 7,931 |BE4E)
Amnound recognised in Oifer Comprehensive Income 1713 m
Movarmant in met defined benef (labfity] / asset during the year biard ] 2020
£'000 ]
et defined {kability| f asset in scherme ot 1 Sugust [25,576) |16, 130
Mcraument in th yee:
Currant servics cost [3,2R3] {2,513
Emnployar comiristions 37 1173
Pant sErvice oosts 125
Met interest on the defired labiliby {3y [£52 1]
Actuanal gam or loos 1,7k 0]
Nl daficvind Banalit [labily] f asset ot 31 July [26,1E1] |25,576)
Adkcwet mnd Lisssiity Recanciliation pooFa ] 020
£'000 £7000

Changes in the present value of defined benefit sbligations

Defined benefit abligations at start of perod 5,02k 62,572
Current service cogt 3,288 2611
Inberest cost w7 1,337
Conbribiitaer by Schema ganicpants 411 iT6
Espenanca |gans) and kecas on defivad benedit obligatons [2,013) |4 3204
Changes in finandial assumptions 7,831 B.B4E
Estimated bensfits pad [ EAHsL) |l

Post service conts - | 183
Curtailments s st hements c

Difinad benelit sbigations 31 eod of porisd 20,492 65,345

Changes it Tair walue af plan assats

0L 2020

£'D0D EDO
Fair walue of plan assets a8 start of period 44,570 Ab 452
Rerbrn an plan sty #,64 13.585)
Inberest on flan ases RIS b
Employer corardeions L3z7 1173
Canbributiors by Scheme particpants 411 T
Estimated benefiis poid 12,0 ) {Loasy
Fair valus of plan assets a8 end of pered 54,511 44,110

Thase scoounts shoe o past serdice cost of EX40 milkon in respect of the McCloud § Serpeend padgment which ruled that the tramesdionsd protecton for some memnbers of publs senace
schemes implomented when ey were relormed coratitubed ape diserimmation. This provision i just under 2% o the total sehesne labdity as st 31 July B30, The calsulation of
adjustmint 1o past sevics cocts, £7 hiion, arising from the ouloose of th Court of Agpeal judgmant is basd on @ number of kiy ssrsgtions indudng:

= the form of remedy adopied

= hire the remmeady will be rrolerented

= which membars wil be alfucted by the remedy
& il gEEning agsumpions

& tha withdrreal assumpbicn

The other finandial and demographic assumptions adopted to caltulate the past seraoe cost are e same as those used bo caloulate the overall scheme liabdity, Adopting different
asturpdions, or meking other s o reflect behai | charges ing from the judg t, would be especied fo charge the declosed past service cost, Similarly, sfowing
Tar wiriations i individual meeders’ Tutire service of S lery progtession B anpected ta gegduce higher casts, The pidt service oot o particuleely sensitive 1 the difference belwesn
assuimisnd bang term gersrad iy growih aee thic CFL IT i lang teemm salary growts assumplions were 0U5% pa lowar, (e the ot seivicn oo dickossd hane would e sspectad 1o
raduce by S0% and corwersaly a 0U5% pa increase would incroass the ostimated cost by 5%

51
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25 Relatad pany ransactices

Due to e noture of the Collape’s pperabors and the composiion of the board of govemors being drawn from local public and pravote sector organe=ations, it i inevitaible that
frareackions will take glace with organisstions in which a member of the Soard of govemors may hive an merest. 81 ranssctions swobang sach crganisations sre conducked ot sem's.
lengts and in secondance with the Callege’s Trancial regulalicns sed normal procuiesnes) procsdures

Thars wind N0 sxperass pasd t or on Behall of the Sowersces duning tha year [2019.20: £nil|,

Mo Goyernor Fas received any remuneration or waived payments from the Colleps or 83 submidianes dunng the year [2019-20: Mone)
Salford Academy Trust

Zalford Gry College was the sponsor of Salford Academy Trost. Saifond Acadamy Trust comerises of the Albon Acadenyy, Mariborough Read Academy, Dulesgate Acadeny and Iriam
and Cadifeead College. The Academibes within the Trust transferned to the United Leasning Trust on 1 Februany 3019, Folowing transfer, a prooess of closure was enacied for the Salford
Academy Tnass, with the Trust placed imto sobvent bouedabion on 10th Septemisar 3021, The Colege paid 2 sum of £13 inrespect of o subscripbion on bekalf of the Toust in 2030-21 which
s recharged to the Tryst (300920 £3,544 paid and sfso recharged bo the Trust) Trere were no ssles o the indyidusl seademies withe the Trost duning the yess |2015-20: £nill
Thare vk ni: halance eraing bo the College at 31 luby 2000 [2049-20; £2,5464). The fellowirg emplagiees o Saflard City College were direcion of Sa¥and &cadery Trusk

Salfnrd Ciry Collage Salord Acadesny Trast
Michaed ] Sheshan Groag Principal Chair frasigned 31 December 2020]
Tracy Kitchengman Yice Prncipal (Finance and Resources] Director (resipresd 23 August 2015}
Krmiberley Cash Yice Principal {Welfsre, Sefeguardeg B Pastoral Cae) Director (commenced 10 Octaber 2019)
Ruth Dsbaurme-TRormgsan Wik Princigal (Cenirad Servoed) Director (gammenced 7 Februarg J0U8)

Eddobs Limited

Edbobs Limdted wee a wholly owned subsidary of Salford Cry College. Tre College made one payment of £8 on behalf of Edlcks Limitesd in the yesr 201320 £163), Mo balances wers
writhen off dharing the year (200510 CLEGL, relsting to an application to Companies House to dissolve the company|, The companmy was dissefved on 17 Mowember 2020

26 Amounts disbarsed as agent
Lesner sapport funds.
gy 1020
£'DDD (yiii]
16- 1B bursary grars B51 TOT
Otier funding body grangs LE 57
u1& L]
Dutirrid oo carded Torsand fFom predious yeee b |
Diasbursed 10 siudents {547 |LoE3)
Agieministrabion costy [£5] (Ele]
CHber expenddure in ine with grant conddions {26
Resbegsad Tram Free Schoal Mals mw
Baklince unspent s at 31 July, included in creditons aze .

Funding by grasts are availatéas sokidy Tor students. in U majority of instances, the Colege only acks a5 & paying agent. In b cincumetancas, The grasts and reabed dishursments
ara thenafora eucluded from the Statemsnt of Comprehansive Incoma,



